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ELTON M . LAGASSE 

October 16, 1998 

ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE 

JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 
4600 RIV~R ROAD 

MARRERO, LOUISIANA 70072-1943 
(504) 349-7600 

FAX (504) 349-7665 

Honorable Board M embers 
Jefferson Parish Public School System 
501 M anhattan Boulevard 
Harvey, Louisiana 70058 

M embers of the Board 

FRANK S. DAVIS 
AS SIS1AI, tT S LIPE AT~rI"E ~ DE ~~r 

The comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Jefferson Parish Public School System (Schoo l 
System) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 is submitted herewith. This report was prepared by the 
Schoo l System's Business Services Division. Responsibility for both accuracy of the presented data and the 
co mpleteness an d fairn ess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests wi th th e School System . W e 
believe th e data, as  presented , is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented  in a manner designed  
to fairly set forth th e fumncial position and the results of operations of th e School System as measured  by 
the financial activity of its various funds; an d that all disclosures nece ssary to enable th e reader to gain an 
understanding of the Schoo l System's financial activities have been included . 

The CAFR is presented in three sections: (l) introduction, (2) financial, and (3) statistical. The 
introduction section includes this transmi ttal letter, the Schoo l System's organizational chart, an d a list of 
principal officials. The financial sec tion includes th e general purpose financial statements and th e 
co mbining an d individual fund financial statements an d other supplemental information, as well as the 
independent auditors' report on th e financial statements. The statistical section includes selected financial 
an d demographic inform ation, generally presented on a multi-yea r bas is. The Schoo l System is required  to 
undergo an  annual single audit in co nformity wi th provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 
and U.S. Office of M ~amgement and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of State, Local Governments, an d 
Non-Profit Organizatiord." Information related to this single audit, including the sched ule of fed eral 
financial assistance, findings an d recomm endations, and independent auditors' reports on compliance  an d 

internal control over financial reporting an d on co mpliance with the req uirements applicable to each major 
program and th e internal co ntrol over co mpliance  in accordance wi th A-133 are included  in a separate 
report. 

THE REPORTIN G ENTITY 

Th e Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System is an  independent spec ial district created  for the purp ose of 
providing elementary and seconda ry ed uca tion to the citizens  of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. Th e general 
purpose financial statements of th e Schoo l System include th e accoun ts of all School System operations . 
Th ese financial statements present th e Schoo l System as th e primary government. 
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The School System has one co mponent unit, the Jefferson Community Charter School, which is presented 
as a discretely presented component unit. The Jefferson Community Charter Schoo l is included in the 
reporting entity because it is fiscally dependent on the School System. The purpose of the Cha rter Schoo l is 
to provide an alternative middle schoo l for at-risk public school students in the sixth, seventh an d eighth 
grade who ha ve been expelled  from the parish public schoo l system to learn appropriate beha vioral an d 
aca demi c skills enabling th em to return as functioning, responsible participan ts in the public middle an d 

high schoo ls. 

Th e Schoo l System is governed by a nine-member schoo l board (Board) elected by the citizens . Each 
member is elected to a four-year term, and the terms are concurrent. See page i for a fisting of the present 
members of th e Board along with th e administrative officials who ar e appointed by the Board. 

Regular m ee tings are sched uled  th e first and third W ednesday of the m onth an d are held in the Schoo l 
System's Administration Building. Special meetings are sched uled  as needed  and announce d in compliance  
with public notice requirements. 

Th e Board has final control over local matters lim ited only by th e state legislature, by th e courts, an d by th e 

wi ll of the people as expressed in Schoo l Board elections . Board decisions are based on a majority vote of 
th ose present. 

In general, th e Board adopts policies, sets direc tion for curriculum , employs the superintendent, an d 
oversee s the operations  of th e Schoo l System an d its schools. Besides general Board business, board 
members are cha rged  with numerous statutory regu lations  including calling board and other school elec tions 
an d canvas sing th e results of elec tions , organizing th e Board, an d electing its offi cers. Th e Board is also 
responsible for setting the ad  valorem tax rate, setting salary sched ules, acting as a board ofappca ls in 
personnel an d student m atters, confirming recomm enda tions  for textboo k ad options, an d ad opting an d 
am ending the annual budget. 

Th e Board solicits and evaluates community input an d support concerning school policies 

M ISSION 

Th e Schoo l System's adopted  mission is 

"
...to pro~ide ed ucatignal programs to meet th e identified  needs of all students in a 

leam ing envi ronm ent that stimulates academi c achievement an d intellectu al 
curiosity, develops positive personal qualities an d well-being, an d fosters respect 
for individual differences." 

To accomplish its mission, th e Schoo l System provides a full range of ed uoa tional services appropriate to  

grad e levels ranging from pre-kindergarten through  ad ulthood. These include regu lar an d enriched 
academic ed uca tion, special ed ucation for children with disabilities, vocationa l ed ucation, an d spec ial 
programs for those with limited English proficiency. Th ese programs are supplemented  by a wide variety 
of offerings in th e fine arts and athletics. 

W e, in th e Jefferson Parish Public School System, recognized the cha llenges we face  as  we prepare students 
for th e 21st century. The demands placed upon us as we approa ch th e new millennium  ha ve increased . W e 
must not only prepare our children to read, write, an d do arithm etic, we must prepare them to live in a fast- 
chan ging, technologica lly-driven, globally competitive world. W e must as sist th ose who don't succeed 

academically since they wi ll not fin d work as unskilled laborers as those jobs ha ve moved overseas or been 
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elim inated. W e m ust prepare our children to understand and take their places in an  increasingly complex 
and challenging world, a world that will require th em to keep on growing an d changing wi th  it. 

To meet this ever3, demanding role, we have developed an academically challenging curriculum that 
includes program s for th e gifted  and talented  as well as program s that prepare students for th e world of 
work. Our high school "academies" prepare students for the world of work by coordinating th ese 
academ ies with real work experience s. W e offer "academi es" in th e fields of banking, travel an d tourism , 
restauran~ management, law-related ca reers, ed uca tion, and hea lth service s. A cred it tmion has even been 
established  at one of the high schools where students are allowed to have real accounts, deposit an d 
withdraw thoir own money, an d learn hands on how to deal with their finances. Our students ha ve th e 
opportunity to visit selected workplace s, to participate in internships th eir senior year, an d even, in some 
instances, to be placed in summer jobs. 

W e recognize th at technology is critica l for our students to be prepared  to enter the world of work. Our 
technology  plans include a $7 million federal mathematics gran t, "I Can  learn" co mputer labs, for middle 
school students. Each of our 83 schoo ls have co mputers in th e classroo ms or co mputer labs which enhance  
th e curriculum . M an y of our schoo ls utilize computer instructional program s such as  Plato, Accelerated  

Rcadcr, etc. All of our schools have Internet access through the libraries and the ma jority of our schoo ls 
are wired  for Intern et acce ss in the clas srooms . W e wi ll co ntinue to wire all clas srooms  th rough our two 
annual NetDays. Our schoo ls also ha ve E-mail co mmunica tions. Our students ha ve created web sites, 
participated in electronic clas srooms, an d co mmunica ted via E-mail an d the Intern et wi th oth er students 
across this nation. Using digital satellite technology rerouted through our instructional access cable 
channel, our students at remote sites can enroll in clas ses such as Japanese, Span ish, Latin, an d advan ce  
'placement mathematics. Our school district has invested  hea vily in th e use of advan ced technology as  a 
tea ching tool. 

The Schoo l System's co mm itm ent to its mission is reflected in its allocation of financial resources. The 
1998/99 budget was  adopted  on August 5, 1998. Total expected  budgeted  expenditures for th e General 

Fund are $266,627,881. Projected revenues and other financing sources for the General Fund total 
$265,291,649. Th e projected year-end fund balan ce for FY 1998/99 is $9 million. State funding for 
Equalization related to the 1998/99 budget as compared to 1997/98 actual is projected to decrease based on 
the expected loss of 523 students. Sales taxes are projected to grow at a 2.0% rate while ad valorem taxes 
are projected to increase slightly. 



ACCOM PLISHM ENTS AND INITIATIVES 

As reflec ted  in the School System's mission statement, activities of th e School System focus on learning 
opportunities for students. The degree of succ ess, to educate all of its students, is indicated by the 
following: 

Student Population (Projected Fqf 1998/99) 
Number of schools 
Number of students transported daily 
Number of schoo l buses 
Number oflca chers 
Number of employees (all funds) 
N umber of student lunches served  da ily 
Number of schoo ls that provide breakfast 
Number of schools that have lunch programs 
Num ber of employee lunches serv ed  da ily 
Number of student breakfasts served  da ily 
Annual operating budget 
Cost per pupil 

Among th e noteworthy events occurring during the schoo l year 1997/98 were 

53,617 
83 

36,714 
347 

3,493 
7,325 
38,000 

82 
82 

1,103 
14,000 

$266,627,881 
$4,973 

The Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System Principals of the Year for 1997-98 are as follows: M s. Carol 
Braun, C.T. Janet Elementary schoo l, M r. Jerome Helmstctter, Haynes M iddle School, and Joseph 
Fennidy, L.W . Higgin.q High Schoo l. 

The 1996-97 principals honored  at th e East Jefferson and W est Bank Councils of th e Cham ber an d Cox 
Communica tions Excellence in Education Awards  Luncheon were M ary Ehret, Boudrca ux; Paul Emenes, 
T.H. HarTis (now Executive Regional Director); and Dr. Dian e Roussel, Riverdale. Dr. Lisa M owen from 
W est Jefferson was th e as sistant principal honored. Th e teachers of th e year recognized were Jam es Kirylo 
Greenla~  Terrace; M ichael Cancienne, Helen Cox; Rebecca Crochet, Gran d Isle; an d Karen W illiger, 
John Ehret. 

Th e teachers selected  as 1997-98 Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System's Teachers of the Year are 
M adeline Crosby from Gran d Isle School; Janet Herbez from Gretna Junior H igh; and Nancy Strigcl from 
Ehret Hi gh Schoo l. 

Jan et M ayberry, a teacher of autistic students at Lincoln Elementa ry  Schoo l, has been nam ed "Special 
Educa tion Teacher of the Year." This award was  sponsored  by th e Special Ed uca tion Advisory  Counci 

Anna Johrtson, leacher at Jefferson Elementary , was nam ed  one of the 12 outstanding teachers selected as a 
slate finalist in th e Presidential Awards Program for Excellence in M ath ematics an d Science Teaching. 

M ichelle M an o, a teacher at Riverda le High Schoo l, has won th e Southeast Louisiana Professional Chapter 
of AGTS 1998 Award for Exeo llenee  in Gifted an d Talented  Educa tion. 

Chris Reuter, a teacher at Higgins, has been nam ed  Tolerance Teacher of th e Year by th e South ern Institute 
for Educa lion an d Research at Tulan e University . He is th e first teacher in th e N ew Orleans area to receive 
this award. 
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Joan Bungc, itinerant ESOL teacher based at Estelle, was selected to go to Japan in June, 1997, for a three  
wee k cultural study under the Fulbright M emorial Fun d Teacher Program . 

Constance Groue, teacher at Estelle Elementary, Lynne M cDonald, eac her at Airline Park Elementary, an d 
Am y Provensal, teacher at Riverdale M iddle were nominated for the 1997-98 Sallie M ac  First Clas s 
Tea cher Award. 

Leah Ballard, job trainer/placement specialist in the Vocational Services for Students with Disabilities 
Departm ent was presen ted the "Friend of Special Education" award by th e Jefferson Parish Public School 
System Special Educa tion Advisory Coun cil. 

Tom Verret, technology teacher at Ehret High, was chosen as a winner of th e prestigious "Outstanding 
Technology  Education Program" award given by th e Tec hn ology Ed uca tion Division of the Am erican 
Vocational Association. 

Karen Letllanc, Title I Evaluation specialist, an d Patti W addell, a Tire I four-yea r-old teacher at Strehle 
won the Student Paper Award at th e Louisiana As sociation ofEvaluators 8th Annual Conference. The 
paper was  entitled  "Adequate Yea rly Progress, Jefferson Parish Public School System's Title I Early 
Childhood Program ." 

Endall Smith-Sham as, a teac her at Janet Elementary School was nam ed  the 1997 Sallie M ae First Clas s 
Tea cher for th e State of Lo uisiana. 

Dr. Diane Roussel, principal of Riverdale High School, was named Louisiana's Principal of the Year and is 
a candidate for th e 1998 Nationa l Principal nf th e Yea r. 

Jennifer W right, th e coordinator of A.P.E. and th e secondary alternative programs, was awar ded the 
prestigious LAHPERD Honor Award. Cindy LaBauve, an  adapted physica l educa tion teacher and child 
search evaluatur, received  th e Ellen Gillentine Award for her outstanding efforts in th e field of A.P.E. 

Jamie Staub, Higgins Hi gh, was chosen to receive th e Ralph T. Nelson Award for distinguished  service  in 

Th e Electronic Model Contress (TEMC). 

Karen W illiger, a teacher of special education stuclents at Ehret Hi gh  Schoo l has been awarded the 
"Clarissa Hug Teacher of the Yea r Award" for the State nf Louisiana. This award was sponsored  by the 
Cotmcil for Exceptional Childrrn. 

Otis Hixon, Title I employee, was  named Distinguished  Title I Graduate at th e Nationa l Title I Conference 
by th e State Department of Ed ucation. 

M rs. Trudy Faltennan, clerk at C.T. Jan et Elementary Schoo l, an d M rs. W an da Burlette, account/library 
clerk at Airline Park Elementary School were selected "Clerical Employee s of the Year." 

M abel Bce lder, a spec ial educa tion teacher as sistant from Riverdale M iddle School an d Peter Turn er, a 
special education teacher as sistant from Solis Elementa ry  School were selce ted as  Paraprofessiona l 
"Employees of the Yea r." 

Dorothy Boudreaux, cafeteria man ager at Bridge City schoo l, an d Phyllis M iller, cafeteria m anager at 
Grce nlawn, have been nam ed  "Child Nutrition Employees of th e Year." 
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Tony Giocone, an eight hour custodial helper at East Jefferson High, and Herbert W iliams, assistant plant 
manager at Bridge City school, have been named "Support Personnel of the Year." 

Student Recognition 

National M erit Finalists for Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System were Alton M cFarlan d from Bonnabel 
an d Adam Swensek from Riverdale. National M erit Semifinalists were Charles Thurmond, Bonnabel; 
James Gambrell, East Jefferson; and M ichael Bebow, Jet-Chin Chna ng, Amy Liu, Connie M archesel[i, and 
Peter W eng, Grace King. 

Chau Le, W est Jefferson, and Travis Torrence , Al fred  Bonnabel, ha ve been designated as semifinalists in 
the 1997-98 Coea -Cola Scholars Program . Only 1,902 semi finalists were designated  from nearly 129,000 
applicants. 

Kristen Green, Al ice  Birney Elementary; Sam antha Pruitt, Riverdale M iddle School; an d Eliada Nwns u, 
John Ehret Hi gh Schoo l, were selected as Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System's "Students of the Year." 

Travis Torrence, a senior at Bonnabel Hi gh School, is one often individuals in the state to be nam ed  a 
"Louisiana Young Hero" by th e Lo uisiana Public Broadcasters. 

Annmarie Carr, a seventh grader at Helen Cox Junior Hi gh Schoo l, won first place in the Quaker Friends 
M eeting of New Orleans Literary Contest. Annmarie wrote on th e topic "How can I promote peace  in my 
everyday life." 

Kenny M cCormack, a student from Bonnabel Hi gh School, place d first in state in th e 1997 Intergalactic 
Art contest for th e Space  Science  Stu dent Involvement Program sponsored  by th e Nationa l Aerona utics an d 
Space  Adininistration an d admirdstered  by the Nationa l Science Tea chers Association~ 

The following are cham pion winners in th e Academic Games N ationa l Tournament. Team  Constellation - 
Sweepstakes, champions; Presidents, champion; Propaganda, champion, Equations, champion; Linguistic, 
champion. Team members include Al lison Vega, W illiam Green, Eddie Harris, and David Roux from 
W oodland W est and Kris Khalil from Keller. The individual winners were: Sweepstakes, national 
champion, W illiam  Green, W oodlan d W est' Presidents, national champion, Sarah Barowka, Keller; 
Linguistic, undefea ted, Brian Truong, Andrew M eCord, Eddie Harris, David Roux, Al lison Vega and 
W illiana Green, W oodland W est an d Rachel Fertel, Kris Khalil, Jason Franicevieh, M aggie Clack, Jona than 
Floyd, Alix D'Angelo, Cecilia Chea, and Benji Ra bhan, Keller. Equations; undefeated; Al lison Bega, 
David Roux, W illiam  Green, and Kyle Arrington, W oodland W est; and Cec ilia Chea, Jona than Floyd, 
Ra chel Fertel, Benji Rabhan, Jason Franicevich an d lois Khalil, Keller. On Sets, undefeated, Al lison 
Vega, Brian Truong, and David Roux, W oodlan d W est. 

The following are th e final an d individual team results from the recent academic games Linguistic 
tournam ent, elementary division. Team competition, first place, Keller, "Appo sitively Awesome". 
Individual competition winners were: W oodland W est, Paul Underwood, Steven Graham , Clarissa M oses, 
Nicole M icoff, an d Kyle Arrington; Keller, Sarah Barowka, Jona than Benn ett, Douglas s Al ongia, Brett 
Tortich, Allan Farber, Ashley Veade, M ia Goldwasser, Samantha M ason, Kyle Stickling, Katie Remes, and 
Ariel Joder; an d Butler, Blake Borrns . 
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W est Jefferson High School distributive education students were winners in the state competition at the 
Career Development Conference in Alexandria. They represented the state of Louisiana at th e National 
Conference in April. 

The first 1997-98 Academic Games tournam ent for th e secondary division of Jefferson Parish Public 
School was held October 22 and 23. Individual winners include, middle division, first place, N icole Babb 

W orley an d Perry Tsai, Adams; junior division, first place, Anna Garcia, Gretna Junior; senior division, 
first place , Hazen Joudeh, Ehret. Team winners include, middle division, first place, W odey Spartans; 

junior division, first place, Ehret's A team; senior division, first place, Ehret's A team. 

The winners of th e Propaganda 199% 98 Parish awards in th e elementary division are as follows: individual 
awards, Jonathan Bemlett, Keller, first place. Team awards included, Prop Pros, W oodlan d W est, first 
place. The "TOP TEN" awards  were given to Renford Cindass, Estelle; Clarissa M oses, W oodlan d W est; 
Sarah Barowka, Keller', Douglas Al ongia, Keller; Dale Flint, Keller; Kyle Arrington, W oodland W est; M ia 
Goldwasser, Keller', Dipal Patel, George Cox; Paul Underwood, W oodlan d W est; Taylor M urrow, Green 
Par; an d Brian  Trn ong, W oodlan d W est. 

Brandon Babin, a senior at Grace  King high, won the U.S. Sena te Essay Contest in Jefferson Parish. 

Brian  Smunons and Juliette Swiler, Ellender students, participated in th e State Gumbo Games in Baton 
Rouge. Brian won first place  gold medals in th e shot put an d discus. Juliette placed first in shot put an d 
second for both the 100 meter and 200 meter race s. 

Forty-three Jefferson Parish schoo ls were honored at th e Brown Foundation Community Service Awards 
Program Luncheo n. A special merit award of $1,250 was  awarded to Riverdale High Schoo l. Th e high 
schoo l an d m iddle schoo l winners were W est Jefferson and Roo sevelt respec tively. Th ese schoo ls each 
received  a check in the am ount of $5,000. 

Johnson/Gretna Park second graders Tiffan y Agent, Kimberly Henning, an d Brittany Lotz; and first graders 
Jordan St. Blan c an d Van essa W oo ten had th eir stories and poems published  in the Journal of th e Louisian a 
Reading Association. 

Bonnabel High Schoo l students received first place awards at the annual student competition of the 
Lo uisiana Vocationa l Industrial Clubs of Am erican held in M onroe. Th ey were Tommy Sam uels, 
Commercial Banking; Ryan  Neely, Cabinetmaking;G eorge Gomez, Advertising Design. Th ese students 
attended  the Nationa l Vocationa l In dustrial Clubs of America n vocational competition in Kansas City, 
M issouri in Jun e. 

Th e studea ts of the year honored by the East Jefferson an d W est Bank Councils of the Chamber an d Cox 
Communica tions at th e Exce llence in Educa tion Awards Lun cheon were Kelly Roth , Airline Park; Kristen 
Roth, T.H  Harris and Bradley Spieler, Bonnabel 

Students from L.W . Higgins Hi gh Schoo l traveled to W as hington, D .C., where they represented Louisiana 
in th e na tional finals of "W e th e Peo ple," th e highly prestigious co mpetition on th e Constitution. 

Cadet Staff Sergeant Jona than Parn ell of the LA-937 AFJROTC was  honored at th e Hi ggins JROTC 
M ilitary Dining Out/Awards  Ban quet with th e awarding of the "Silver Valor" award for heroism . This is 
th e second highest award that can be bestowed  upon a JROTC cadet and the first time in history of th e 
Higgins refit that a cadet has won this award. Cadet Parnell rescued  a young man from a potentially life- 
th reatening attack by several hundred  was ps. 
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The Ellender M iddle School Eagles foo tball team captured the parish middle schoo l championship six 
consecutive seasons. 

Roosevel! M iddle Schoo l's "Rough Riders" girls' basketball team were the 1997 undefeated parish champs 
This is th e second year in a row that th ey have achieved  this title. 

W illie M ack, Bonnabel, won first place high sehool division and first place overall in a state "Schoo l-To- 
W ork" poster contest. 

Joshua Barone, Ri verdale High , has been named "Young Magician of the Year" by the Society of American 
M agieiarts. 

The following students were winners in their grade ca tegories for th e credit union essay oo ntest. They are 
Issei M itsuoka, J.C. Ellis, K-2 grade ca tegory, $100 savings bond; Leslee  Eiehier, Jan et Elementary, 3-5 
grade category, $200 savings bond; Nadia Armour, Bunehe M iddle, 6-8 grade ca tegory , $300 savings 
bond. 

Th e Louisiana School Board Association sponsored an artwork co ntest in each school district. The first 
place winners were as follows: Brent Bourgeois, fourth grade student at Lafitte Elementa ry, K.-4 ca tegory ; 
Rapha el ('lark, a fifth grad e student at St.Ville Elementary, 5-8 category ; Leo Green, a ninth grade student 

at Helen Cox Junior High , 9-12 category. 

Th e following are first place team and individual winners from th e academic games on-sets tournam ent, 
elementary division. Team  competition W oodlan d W est, "Prime Time Players", in the individual 
competition the undefeated  winners were: W oodlan d W est- Brian Truong, Steven Graham , Clarissa M oses, 
N icole M icoff, Kyle Arrington, Paul Underwood, Juliet Tran, an d Erie LeBlan c. Th e first place individual 
winner in the middle division was Tam  Nguyen, Gretna Junior. M iddle division team winners was 
Ellender's "A Team". Th e individual junior division winner was Haeareth Nwosu, Ehret Hi gh Schoo l. 
Junior division team winner was Ehret's "A Team". Individual senior division winners were Tas ha Breaux 

and Johnny Huynh, Ehret High  School. Senior division team winner was Ehret's "A Team". 

Th e winner in th e individual equations  tournam ent was Tam Nguyen, Gretna Junior. M iddle division team 

winners were Ellender's "I Team" an d Gretna's "Dream Team". Individual junior division winner was 
Geoffrey Rodriguez, Ehret. Junior Division team winner was Ehret's "A Team". Individual senior 
division winners were Tas ha Breaux an d Jodie Clements, Ehret. Senior division team winner was Ehret's 
"A Team". 

Sixtee n fourth an d fiffl~ grade students from M arie Ri viere Elementary  Schoo l qualified  for participation in 
th e Duke University M otivation for Academi c Performance  program . Th ese stu dents were: Stephanie Byer, 
Chrystalynne Guillot, Dong Huan g, David Oh, Alexander Plumage, Kristen Roth , Liang Sun, Rachel 
Abadie, M ary Brewington, Amie Byer, Kathryn Cefalu, Ashley Guidry, W ilmer Lara, Latyvia Nunnery , 
Tma Skrepnik, an d Julie Staehle. 

The following stu dents attending Cuillier Career Center placed first in various categories in the Vocational 
Industrial Clubs of America competition. Th e winners are as follows: job seeking interview - Stacey Reid; 
elcetronie repair - Robert Gatewoo d; masonry - W illiam Hea d. 



Jenny Heil, edRor-in-~hlef of Grace  King High Schoo l's newspaper, Irish Eyes won the Silver Scribe award 
at Loyola University's deparlm ent of communications and th e New Orleans Press Club Silver Scribe 
competition. Jenny was also a first place winner in feature writing. First place winner in news writing was 
Katie Heil. The newspaper Irish Eyes took top honors at th e Silver Scribe  Competition. 

W e reco gJfize that today's student is different, and we must address their various learning styles. To 
improve student performance  beyond standardized testing, we rewrote th e school's curriculum standards in 
language arts an d math. Curriculum  content, methodology, an d as sessment standards  were strengthened to 
better align them with state an d national be nchmarks. W hile the teachers who participate in th e revision 
process me testing th e new curriculum, curriculums are also be ing rewritten in the areas of science , social 
studies, foreign language, an d th e arts. This standards -bas ed curriculum  will ad dress th e various lea rning 
styles of today's students while establishing higher benchmarks for student performance. 

As a result, we embarked  on a co ncentrated program to improve students' standa rdized test sco res, 
dedicating more than $500,000 in ad ditional instructional ma terials an d teacher-training to this program . 
W e set goals to decrease the perce ntage of students in th e lowest quartile, to increase th e percentage of 
stu dents above th e national average, an d to enable at least 50 perce nt of students to sco re 50 percent or 
better on the standa rdized tests. To achieve this, we established a nine-member task force. Armed  wi th the 
spring 1997 test results, th e task force  met wi th each of th e 83 principals to  analyze th eir schoo l's 
perform an ce an d develop an  individualized plan for im provement, based  on the strengths an d weaknesses of 
that school. Each school's instructional plan was augmented with th e results of a system-wi de st~andardized 
pretest that was administered in the fall of 1997. The testing task force cycle was repeated at the end of the 
school year. 

To assure that our students have a safe place to learn an d that all students receive th e education to which 
they are entitled , we spend approxim ately $5 million on discipline an d safe schoo l programs. Full-tim e 
deputies now police seven high schools an d two junior high  schoo ls as a preventive measure. The Police 
On Campus program is a partnership wi th th e Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office  to ensure that every child 

should be able to come to school and feel safe, comfortable, and have a joy-filled day. Th e program has 
received  th e statewide 1998 Criminal Justice  Award. 

New curriculum content an d standa rds  inevitably change th e way teaching, learn ing, an d as sessments oceur 
in the clas sroo m . To prepare our teachers to make the most of the new curriculums, we are co nducting 
training through out the schoo l year. Th e training is not only iniended to help teachers present the new 
curriculum, but also to introduce them to teaching methods that have been shown to prod uce high er skill 
levels in students. Accelerated Readers programs, for example, ha ve increased reading level and library 
usage, l.x.uisiana Systemi c Initiative Program ma th-teaching methods have im proved mathema tics test 
scores. Our schoo l year calendar has been expan ded  to include two additiona l staff development da ys for 
teachers. Teachers receive gu idance  on developing better tests, administering tests more effec tively, 
improving student preparation for tests, an d interpreting test sco res for co ntinuous improvement of th eir 
teaching, curriculum development, an d test methods. 

Technology rema ins a top priority for our teaching staff. To that end, we ha ve established  five 
teachiag /lca ming labs. These labs are available to teachers, teacher as sistants, an d clerical staff in order to 
kee p them abreast of th e current technology necessary to meet th e needs of their students an d our 
co mmunib,. 



Our student population is diverse, but we believe that all children can learn . W e teach tolerance, respect for 
diversity, and recognition of various learning styles to address student differences. Our programs include 
Project Read for dyslexic students, 504 accommodations, English Speaks of Other Languages, character 
and values education, peer m editation, Drug Awareness Resistance  Education, Gang Resistance  Education 
Awareness Training, an d Teen Court. W e have trained  our administrators and teachers in learning styles, 
values education, non-crisis prevention, an d cultural awareness in addition to curriculum training. W e 
endorse the idea  that lea rning is a positive experience  between a good teacher an d a student. 

The hea rt of the school system is a varied curriculum and a wide range of educational experience s offered 
from pre-kindergarten th rough ad ulth ood for th e community. 

~ Th e core curriculum addresses English, mathematics, science, reading, social studies, creative arts and 

physical education. Electives in junior an d senior high  schoo l include foreign langu ages, art, music, 
vocational co urses, computer science  and co mputer literacy. 

~ Th e program for acad emically gibed  students offers structured  enrichm ent classes an d spec ially 

designed elective classes to children beginning at age three an d continuing through  grad e 12. 

~ Th e special education department identifies an d evaluates children with disabilities from birth th rough 
age 21. Students receive occupational therapy, physical therapy, speec h, an d soc ial work service s as 
well as specialized instruction during the schoo l year an d the summer (extended school year.) Th e)' are 
taught skills to help th em function in the co mm unity, and they are offered the largest array of 
vocational programs, including job counseling an d placement. 

~ Th e vocational ed ucation plan  ens ures that every freshman will be able to take a vocational elective 

This plan also integrates career awareness in all subject ma tter areas. 

Title I is a fed erally funded program  designed to improve th e ed ucational opportunities of ed uca tionally 
deprived elfildren by helping th em succe ed in th e regular program , attain grade level proficiency, an d 
improve achievement in basic an d more ad van ced skills. These purposes are accomplished th rough 
academic instru ction in th e areas of reading/lan guage arts an d math , increased parental involvement 
an d implementation of innovative programs. 

~ Adult ed ucation provides instructional offerings in basic academic and life-long coping skills that wi ll 
enable the adult student to co ntinue an  ed ucation. Students in the ad ult education program  must be 16 
yea rs of age or older, must not be enrolled  in the K-12 system, an d must have less than a high schoo l 

ed ucation. Project Open Doo r, Project Independence, an d classes in English as a second langu age in 
addition to basic ed ucation clas ses an d pre-GED classes assist th e ad ult in th e ability to function more 
productively an d responsibly in soc iety. 

STUD ENT ENROLLM ENT 

During th e period 1977/78 through 1991/92, public schoo l enrollment showed a changing trend. In 
1977/78, th e first negative growth in recent history  was  experience d and th e trend co ntinued until 1983/84 
when a trend reversal to a positive growth began  co ntinuing into 1988/89. Since  FY 1988/89 the pattern 
has been more erratic but has been characterized by a grad ual decline in enrollment. The following table 
lists the enr ollm ent, average daily membership and average da ily attendance. 
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School 
Year 

1977/78 
1978/79 
1979/80 
1980/81 
1981/82 
1982/83 
1983/84 
1984/85 
1985/86 
1986/87 
1987/88 
1988/89 
1989/90 
1990/91 
1991/92 
1992/93 
1993/94 
1994/95 
1995/96 
I996/97 
1997/98 

STUDENT ENROLLM ENT DATA 
Student Increase/ Average Daily 

Enrollm ent <Decrease> M embership 

69,627 
67,069 
63,216 
61,594 
59,522 
56,951 
55,715 
56,698 
56,841 
57,686 
57,856 
58,234 
57,479 
57,085 
57,252 
56,657 
55,475 
56,137 
55,008 
54,576 
54,587 

<799> 
<2,558> 
<3,853> 
<1,622> 
<2,072> 
<2,571> 
<1,236> 

983 
143 
845 
170 
378 
<755> 
<394> 
167 

<595> 
<1,182> 

662 
<1,129> 
<432> 

11 

Projected enrollment for FY 1998/99 is 53,617 

67,914.4 
65,533.2 
62,415.0 
60,092.0 
58,334.0 
55,514.0 
54,394.0 
55,714.0 
55,874.0 
56,577.0 
56,735.8 
57,040.0 
56,590.7 
56,971.0 
55,592.9 
55,241.0 
57,638.3 
57,022.8 
52,008.0 
52,024.0 
52,031.6 

Average Daily 
Attendance 

61,519.2 
59,165.4 
54,973.0 
54,268.0 
53,015.0 
51,589.8 
51,501.9 
52,199.9 
52,441.0 
53,292.0 
53,209.7 
53,076.0 
52,482.4 
53,682.0 
56,195.0 
49,042.0 
53,489.3 
52,984.8 
48,960.0 

4~017.6 
49,128.3 

The school system has a tremendous financial impact on the community. It has in excess of 7,300 
employees and an annual payroll in excess of $170 million. It also spends annually $50 million on goods 
and services, and over $10 million for repairs and renovations. 

Tile overall economy in Jefferson Parish co ntinues to show im provements th rough diversification. Jefferson 
Parish is the second most populated parish in Louisiana with the population sho~ ng a slight dec rease in 

1998~ The per capita income i0 Jefferson is consistently high er than the majority of Lo uisiana's parishes 
an d the state as a whole. Further job growlh in Jefferson Parish is expected to be concentrated most heavily 
in th e service industry, especially professional service s such as law, medicine, accounting, engineering an d 
fin an cial service s. An area that has recently grown is th e oil an d gas  industry , particularly on th e Harvey 
Canal located on th e west bank. W hile Jefferson Parish offers all of th e business am enities an d serviee s 

which commercial establishments loo k for, it also affords its residents a high  quality of life-with good 
schools, low crime rates an d plenty of rec rca tional activities. The training facility of th e New Orleans 
Saints is located  in Jefferson Parish, an d a minor league baseball park opened  in April, 1997, home to the 
AAA semi-professional New Orleans Zephyrs. Jefferson Parish is well on its way to becoming the future 
business an d comm ercial hub of th e Gulf South , but it has not forgotten its rich histo ry nor neglected its 
abundant natural an d scenic resources. It is a community where quality of life and progress go hand-in- 
hand. In an  attempt to shed the label "bedroom co mmunity" which is so often applied to suburban  areas on 
the perimeters of large cities, Jefferson has moved progressively forward, with major office an d shopping 
complexes springing up everywhere. For the tourist, Jefferson Parish is a popular home bas e from which to 
explore th e fas cinating environs  of South Louisiana. Its m odern, first clas s acco mm odations  are 



competitively priced and offer a quiet, safe an d affordable environment in which to enjoy the quaint charm 
an djoie de vivre of the surrounding parishes. Jefferson is home to the Jean l.,afitte National Park an d the 
Bayou Segnette State Park, both of which ar e very popular with residents and tourists alike. W hile catcrhag 
to family tourists, Jefferson Parish has an  extensive co llection of fine restaurants, many specializing in 

Creole an d Cajun cuisine. Residents and tourists alike participate in the lively parades and celebration of 
the Mardi Gras season throughout Jefferson Parish. Twelve institutions of high er learning are located in 
th e New Orleans area and ar e easily aoe essible to Jefferson Parish residents. In addition, th ere are two 
theo logical institutions  an d several business, trade and tec hnical schools that prepare students for various 
occupations. 

In December of FY 1995/96, the Schoo l Board issued $50 million in new l/2e Sales Tax Bonds funded by 
the current l/2e Sales Tax  Revenue (no new tax was required). The new money is dedicated to renovations 
of existing schools, as well as new energy effieient ligh ting systems. As of October 1, 1998, $37,611,009 of 
the projects have been completed with $8,076,801 remaining to be completed. Th e Jefferson Parish Public 
School System has operated  with a surplus for th e past eight fiscal years. The fiscal year ended  1997/98 
General Fun d surp lus exceeds $11 million. Th e tea chers in Jefferson Parish are unionized. In September 
of ] 997, the Board and Union agreed to a new throe (3) year contract ending June 30, 2000. This contract 
is valued at nea rly $9 million. Th e philosophy of the schoo l board is conservative and funds must be 
identified  and recurring before rec urring expenditures can be added  to th e budget. During FY 1993/94 th e 
Jefferson Parish Schoo l Board ad opted two fiscally cons ervative provisions  that enhance its ability to 
provide quality educa tion for the children it serves long term . Th ese provisions are: 

~ Non-recurring funds  cannot be used to establish rec urring expenditures 

~ Th e first 2% of sales tax growth over an d above that projected in the budget will be placed in a 
co ntingency fund an d not automatica lly placed in th e revenue equation for the next yea r's budget. 

Th e Superintendent of the Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System is in th e process of establishing a 
long-ran ge planning/revenue committee, th e composition of which will cons ist of various civic, an d business 
organization representatives as  well as  schoo l board personnel and wi ll meet as  needed  to develop a 

strategic plan . This committee, along with the Education Planning Committee (EIP.C.), wi ll play a ma jor 
role in dec iding those programs an d expenditures that are contained  in th e genera l operations  fund budget as 

well as determ ine whether or not new revenues are needed an d if so for what purpose(s). 

FINAN CIAL IN FORM ATION 

Accounting System an d Budgetary  Control 

In developing an d evaluating th e Schoo l System's accounting system, co ns ideration is given to the ad equacy 
of internal accoun ting controls. In ternal accounting co ntrols are designed  to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition; an d (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements an d maintaining 
accountability for assets. Th e concepts of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; an d (2) the evaluation of co sts an d benefits req uires 
estimates an d judgments by management. 

All internal co ntrol evaluations  occur within th e above framework. W e believe that the School System's 
internal accounting co ntrols ad eq uately safegu ard as sets an d provided reasona ble as surance of proper 
rec ording of finan cial transactions . 
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Budgetary control is maintained at a detailed level by the encumbrance of estimated purchase amounts prior 
to th e release of purchase orders to vendors. 

The school system emphasizes decentralized budgeting in order to enhance  th e ability of principals to serve 
as effective and efficient instructional leaders. In fiscal year 1987 th e School Board gave principals, with 
input from subject coordinators, leachers, students and parents, the authority to spend the allocated 
finan cial resource s to best meet the needs of their unique student groups. To accomplish this end, th e 
School Board adopted a set of guidelines co nsistent with applicable State law. This system allows each 
schoo l to determ ine its needs, establish budgets, an d spend th eir financial resource s according to  th eir ow~ 
timetable or reserve the funds for future yea rs' needs. The vehiele for these actions is the Student Activity 
Fund. All monies due a school are deposited  directly into ea ch schoo l's activity account at the beginning of 
each school yea r. Th e principal, using School Board ad opted guidelines, operates his/her school according 

to his/her individually tailored educationa l plan. A major ad vantage of this system is that it gives principals 
direct control over resource s vital to achieving ed ucationa l suce ess an d in so doing makes it easier to as sess 
accountability for goal achievement. 

General Governmental Functions 

Revenues for Governmental Fund Types which include General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, an d 

Capital Projects Funds total $323,800,419 in 1997/98, an increase of 5.3 percent over 1996/97. Sales taxes 
produced  39.9 percent of total revenues co mpared  to 39.7 perce nt last yea r, an d State Equalization 
prod uced 38.8 percent of total revenues compared  to 39.0 perce nt last year. Th e am oun ts of revenues from 
various sources is shown in th e following tabulation. 

Sales taxes 
Ad valorem ta xes 
Tuition from patrons 

Other local (including interest) 
Stale source s 
Fed eral sources 

Tota l revenues 

Am ount 

$129,245,673 
20,779,992 

668,431 
12,441,043 
139,704,333 
20.960_947 

$323.800.419 

Percent 
of Total 

39.9 %  
6.4 

.2 
3.9 
43.1 
6.5 

100.0 % 

Increase 
(Decrease) 
from 1997 

$ 7,255,520 
1,545,858 
(193,899) 

(2,534,044) 
9,412,201 
803,563 

$16.289.199 

Expenditu res for Governmental Fund Typ es which include General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, an d 

Capital Projects Funds totaled $343,641,631 in 1997/98, a net increase of $35,216,774 or 11.4 pe rcent 
from 1996/97. The primary co mponents for th e increase were increases of approximately $20.0 million in 
salaries an d benefits an d $12.5 million in ad ditional capital outlays. 
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Totalrevenues 

Am ount 

$190,503,938 
97,218,622 
3,167,512 
25,262,482 

14,828,851 
_ _ ..~12660,226 

$343.641.631 

Percent 
of Total 

55.4 %  
28.3 

.9 
7.4 

4.3 
3.7 

100.0 %  

Increase 
(Decrease) 
from 1997 

$13,674,288 
9,119,053 
240,233 

12,546,722 

1,076,182 

(1,439,704) 

Thetotalfund balanee for all Governrnental Fund Types was$98
,142,230 atyear~nd, a decrease of 

$23,388,934. 

At June 30, 1998, the General Fund had a fund surplus of $6,399
,340 on the budgetary basis 

Debt Adm inistration 

The ratio of net bonded debt to as sessed  value and th e am ount of bonded  debt per capita are useful 
indicators of the School System's debt position to management

, citizens, an d investors. This data for the 
Schoo l System as of June 30, 1998, was  as  follows: 

N et General Bonded Debt 

Proprietmy Fund Type 

Debt Service Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
Enterp rise Fund 

Total 

Am ount 
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Ratio of Debt to 
Assessed Value 

O%  

Net Debt 
Per Capita 

S l 

$1,530,915 
3,115,256 
1,021,414 
183.822 



General Fixed Assets 

The fixed assets of the School System are used in the performance of the overall ed ucational function. As 
of June 30, 1998, the general fixed assets of the School System am ounted to $289,157,169. This am ount 
represents the original cost and estimates of original cost of the assets an d is co nsiderably less than th eir 
current replacement value. 

Risk M anagement 

The School System maintains a limited risk program for worker's compensation insurance. As part of this 
program, resource s are being aco umulated in the General Fund to meet potential losses. In addition, 
various risk co ntrol techniques including an  employee  safety program an d pre-employm en t physicals have 
bee n implemented to minimize accident-related losses. Ri sk financing is accomplished through the purchase 
of various insurance policies from co mmercial insurers. 

OTHER INFORM ATION 

Independent Audit 

State law an d School System policy require an annual audit of the boo ks of aec ount an d financial records of 
the School System by independent ce rtified public acco untants selec ted by the School Board. Th e Schoo l 
System has co mplied with this req uirement, an d th e independent auditors' report is included  in this report . 

Awards  

The As sociation of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting, and the Government Finance Officers As sociation (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence  in Financial Repo rting to the Schoo l System for its co mprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the fisca l year en ded June 30, 1997. Th is was  th e eighth consecutive year that the 
Schoo l System has received th ese prestigious awards. In order to  be awarded  th ese Certificates, the Schoo l 
System published  an easily readable an d effi ciently organized Comprehensive annual financial report. Such 
a report satisfied  both generally accepted  accounting principles an d applicable legal requirements. 

The Certificates are valid for a period of one year only. Th e Schoo l System believes that this current 
co mprehensive annual financial report continues to meet both th e Certificate programs' requirements an d 
will be submitted to. ASBO an d GFOA to determine its eligibility for an other ce rtifica te. 
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SCHOOL BOARD 
LENGTH OF TERM 

SERVICE EXPIRES 

Libby Moran , 4 years December 2002 
President, District 7 

Teacher/ 
Restauranteur 

Robert Wolfe, 15 years December 1998 Real Estate Broker 
Member. District 1 

Barry Bordelon, ii years December 2002 
Memb er, District 2 

O.H . Guidry, 8 years December 1998 
Member District 3 

Marketing 
Representative 

Retired School 
Principal 

Laurie Rolling, 8 years Decemb er 2002 Attorney 
Memb er, District 4 

Cedric Floyd, 8 years Decemb er 1998 Demographer 
Memb er District 5 

Martin Marino, 17 years Decemb er 2002 
Memb er District 6 

Retired School 
principal 

Dr. Polly Thomas 7 years Decemb er 2002 University Professor 
Memb er District 8 

Gene Katsanis, 4 years December 2002 Businessman 
Member District 9 

Chris Roberts Newly Elected December, 2002 Businessman 
Member District I 

Ray St. Pierre Newly Elected December 2002 
Memb er District 3 

Karen M . Barnes Newly Elected Decemb er, 2002 
Member District 5  

N am e 
Elton Lagasse 
Frank Davis 

~ Etta Licciardi 
u] Emenes 
orge Hebert 
rgie Zeno 

Dr . Leigh Barton 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS 

School 
Administrator 

Assistant Director/ 
Reservist 

Position 
Superintendent 

Chief Financial Officer/ 
Executive Director, Administration 
and Finance 
Executive Director, Instruction 
Executive Director, East Bank Region 
Executive Director, West Bank Region 
Executive Director, Human Resources 
and Community Programs Management 
Executive Director, Technology 

Length of 
Service 
37 years 
15 years 

30 years 
47 years 
33 years 
30 years 

25 years 
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BARRY DORDELON 
District 2 

O. H, GUIDRY 
District 3 

LA URIE E. ROLLING 
District 4 
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D eloitte &  T ouche LLP R ebowe &  C om pany A PC H anford M . H arrison, CPA 

701 Poydras Street 
Suite 3700 
New O rleans, Louisiana 70139 

(504) 581-2727 

3501 N. Causeway Boulevard 
Suite 810 
M etairie, Louisiana 70002 

(504) 83%0123 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

M embers of th e School Board of 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana: 

1027 W hitney Avenue 
G retna, Louisiana 70056 

(504) 368-2501 

W e have audited the accompan ying general purpose financial statementS of th e Jefferson Parish Public School 
System as of June 30, 1998 and for the year then ended, as listed in the foregoing table of co ntents. These general 
purpose financial statements are the responsibility of th e Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an  opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

W e conducted  our audit in accordance with generally acce pted auditing standards an d th e standa rds applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued  by the Comptroller General of th e United  
States. Those stan dards require that we plan and perform th e audit to obtain reasonable as suran ce about wheth er 
th e general purp ose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
bas is, evidence supporting the amountS and disclosures in the general purp ose finan cial statements. An audit also 
includes as sessing th e accoun ting principles used and significant estimates m ade by m anagement, as  well as  
evaluating the overall general purp ose financial statement presentation. W e believe that our audit provides a 
reasona ble bas is for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general purp ose fin ancial statements referred  to above present fairly, in all material respects, th e 
finan cial position of the Jefferson Parish Publie School System as  of Jun e 30, 1998, and th e results of its operations 
and cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the yea r then ended  in co nformity wi th generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Our audit was co nducted for th e purpose of forming an opinion on th e general purpose financial statementS taken as 
a whole. The combining an d individual fund fin an cial statementS, sched ules an d other supplemental information 
listed in th e foregoing table of co ntents are presented  for purp oses of additional analysis an d are not a required  part 
of the general purp ose fin an cial statements of the Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System . This additional 
information is the responsibility of the Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System's management. Such ad ditiona l 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial 
statements an d, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respectS when co nsidered  in relation to the general 
purpose financial statementS taken as  a whole. 

In accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report da ted October 16, 1998 on our 
consideration of the Jefferson Parish Public Schoo l System's internal control over financial reporting and our testS 
of itS co mpliance wi th certain provi sions  of laws, regulations, co ntracts an d gran tS. 

Th e statistical data listed in the foregoing table of contents is presented for purp oses of additional analysis an d is 
not a req uired part of the general purp ose fin an cial statements of th e Jefferson Parish Public School System. Such 
ad ditional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

CO MBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED CO MPO NENT UNIT 
JUNE 30, 1998 

ASSETS AND 
OTHER DEBITS 

Cash and investments 
(Notes 2, l0 an d 14) 

Receivables: 
Sales and use tax (Note 5) 
Property tax (N ote 4) 
Accounts 
Interest receivable 
Due from other funds (Note 8) 
Due from component unit 

(N ote 8) 
Due from other governm ental 
units 

Govern m ental Fund Types 

Genera 
special Debt (.;apital 
Revenue Service Projects 

Propdetaw . 
Fund Type 
En~ rpnse- 

SchoolLunch 

$16,001,562 $ 5,169,314 $31,252,135 $48,753,480 $ 49,181 

20,451,004 
27,476 

1,423,647 
22,338 

14,917,695 

625,188 

1,158,508 

61,391 

199,118 8,201,636 

Inventories 

Prepaid items (principally 
insurance) 2,055,201 

land, buildings and equipment, 
net (Notes 3, 14 an d 15) 

Amount available in Debt 
Service Funds (N ote 7) 

Am ount to be provided for 
retirement of general 
long term bonds 

Am ount to be provided  for 
co mpensated absences 

Am ount to be provi ded for 
claims an d judgments 

TOTAL ASSETS AND 
OTHER DEBITS $55.159.432 

11,926 

149,754 
6,860,991 

$15,154,646 $38,274,806 

The notes to financial statements are an  integral part of this statement 
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889 
49,346 

8,819,090 

$57.622.805 

11,071 

844,675 

1,071,342 



EXHIBIT C-1 
Page 1 of 2 

Fiduciaw  
Fund Type 

Agency 

$7,800,750 

Govern m ental 
Com ponent 

Totals Unit Totals 
Account Groups Primary The Jefferson Reporting 

General Governm ent Com m unity . Entity 
Fixed Long Term (Memorandum Charter (Memorandum 
Assets Debt Only) School Only) 

$289,157,169 

$289.157.169 

$109,026,422 $ 159,830 $109,186,252 

20,451,004 
39,402 

2,049,724 
221,438 

31,756,284 

61,391 

8,411,825 

844,675 

2,055,201 

20,451,004 
39,402 

2,049,724 
221,438 

31,756,284 

61,391 

8,411,825 

844,675 

2,055,201 

290,228,511 155,238 290,383,749 

$ 36,991,900 36,991,900 

130,057,265 130,057,265 

37,191,989 37,191,989 

320.000 320.000 

$669.707.031 
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36,991,900 

130,057,265 

37,191,989 

320.000 

$670.022.099 

(Continued) 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHOO L SYSTEM 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

JUNE 30, 1998 

LIABILITIES, EQ UITY  
AND OTHER CREDITS 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 

Retainages payable 

Accrued liabilities: 
Salaries, wages, payroll taxes 
and retirement co ntributions 

Claims an d judgments 
(Notes 7 and 11) 
Compensated  absences 
(Note 7) 
W orkers' compensation 
claims (N ote 11) 

Govern mental Fund Types 
Special Debt Capital 

General Revenue Service Projects 

Proprietary 
Fund Typ(~ 
Enterprise - 
School Lunch 

$ 962,~86 $ 30,735 $ 12,067 $ 1,724,141 $ 50,379 

690,266 

32,732,667 

197,600 

840,181 

549,158 

Due to other funds (N ote 8) 9,277,406 11,954,105 1,270,839 8,344,924 906,639 

Due to primary govern ment 
(N ote 8) 

D ue to student groups, schools 

and others (N ote 10) 

Due to other governmental units 

Deferred revenue 

Bonds payable (N ote 7) 

Total liabilities 

5,114 

26,528 

44,010,740 12,016,482 1,282,906 10,759,331 

EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS: 
Irwcs~ax~rtt in general 
fixed assets (Notes 3, 14 and 15) 
Retained  earn ings 
Fund balance (N ote 12): 
Reserved  6,804,553 
Unreserv ed : 
DesignateM 
Undesignated 4 344,139 

Total equity and other credits 11.148.692 

3.138.164 

3A 38A 64 

36,991,900 21,019,647 

36.991.900 

25,541,741 
302,086 

~ 
46,863~474 

1.506.176 

470,093 

470.093 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY 
AND OTHER CRFDITS $55,159,432 $15,154,646 $38,274,806 $57,622,805 $1 976 269 

- 5 - 



EXHIBIT C-1 
Page 2 of 2 

G overnm ental 
Com ponent 

Totals Unit Totals 
Fiduciary Account Groups Primary The Jefferson Reporting 
Fund Type --  General G overn m ent Com m unity Entity 

Fixed Long Term (Memorandum Charter (Memorandum 
Agency Assets Debt Only) School Only) 

$ 2,371 

7,798,379 

7.800.750 

$289,157,169 

289.157.169 

$ 2,780,208 

690,266 

32,732,667 

$ 320,000 517,600 

37,191,989 37,741,147 

840,181 

31,756,284 

7,798,379 

5,114 

26,528 

167.049.165 167.049.165 

204.561.154 281.937.539 

$ 2,780,208 

690,266 

32,732,667 

517,600 

37,741,147 

840,181 

31,756,284 

$ 61,391 61,391 

61.391 

289,157,169 155,238 
470,093 

64,816,100 

25,541,741 
_  

7,7841389 98~439 

7,798,379 

5,114 

26,528 

167.049.165 

281.998.930 

289,312,407 
470,093 

64,816,100 

25,541,741 
7~882~828 

387,769,492 253.677 388,023.169 

$289,157,169 $204,561,154 $669,707,031 

- 6 - 

$670.022.099 

(Concluded) 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

COMBINE[) STATEMENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED CO MPONENT UNIT 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

REVENUES: 
Local sources: 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Tuition and other 
Interest income 
Other 
State sourccs 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 
Instruction 
Supporting services 
Non-instruction 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 
Principal letirem ent 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Governm enta 

Gene~ l Revenue 

$ 14,789,821 
106,551,111 

699,963 
1,021,414 
3,139,056 

132,677,935 
944.613 

259.823.913 

172,481,203 
87,601,307 

11,875 

260.094.385 

$ 3,441,870 

7,026,398 
20.016.334 

30.484.602 

18,022,735 
9,617,315 
2,845,473 

30,485~523 

DEFICIENCY OF RE VENUES OVER EXPENDITURE S (270,472.) (921 ) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Operating transfers in (Note 8) 
Operating tran sfers out (Note 8) 
Transfers to component unit (N ote 8) 
Transfers fiom primary government (N ote 8) 
Payment to refunded  bond escrow agent 
Proceeds of refu nding bonds 
Bond issuan ce  and other costs 

Total other finan cing sources (uses) - net 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RE VENUES AND OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FIN AN CIN G USES 

FUND BALAN CES AT BEGINNIN G OF YEAR 

FUN D BALANCES AT END OF YE AR 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
- 7 - 

80,766 

(3,476,132) 
(450,000) 

(3,845,366) 

622,066 

(81,399) 

540.667 

(4,115,838) 539,746 

15,264,530 2~598,418 

$ 11.148.692 $ 3.138.164 



EXHIBIT C-2 

$ 5,990,171 
19,460,0(10 $ 3,234,562 

1,530,915 

26.981.086 

14,828,85] 
12,660~2266 

27.799.241 

3,115,256 
161,000 

6.510.818 

25,262,482 

25.262.482 

Totals 
Prim ary 

Governm ent 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

$ 20,779,992 
129,245,673 
4,141,833 
5,667,585 
3,300,056 

139,704,333 
20.960.947 

323.800.419 

190,503,938 
97,218,622 
3,167,512 
25,262,482 

14,828,851 
12,660,226 

343.641.631 

(818,155) (18,751,664) (19,841,212) 

1,738,016 
(3,223,831) 

(20,076,067) 
20,467,484 

_ _ _(391,417) 

(1,485,815~ 

3,069,631 
(I,826,839) 

1.242.792 

5,510,479 
(8,608,201) 
(450,000) 

(20,076,067) 
20,467,484 
(39L417) 

G overn m ental 
Com ponent 

Unit Totals 
The Jefferson Reporting 
Com m unity Entity 
Charter (Memorandum 
School Only) 

$ 8,982 
446,310 

$ 20,779,992 
129,245,673 
4,141,833 
5,676,567 
3,746,366 

139,704,333 
20.960.947 

455,292 324,255~711 

412,148 
399,289 
33,504 

8441941 

(389,649) 

450,000 

190,916,086 
97,617,911 
3,201,016 
25,262,482 

14,828,851 
12,660,226 

(20r230,861) 

5,510,479 
(8,608,201) 
(450,000) 
450,000 

(20,076,067) 
20,467,484 
(391,417) 

(3,547,722) 450,000 (3,097,722) 

(2,303,970) (17,508,872) (23,388,934) 

39,295,8700 64.372.346 121.531.164 

$36.991.900 $ 46.863.474 
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60,351 

38~088 

$ 98,439 

(23,328,583) 

121,569~252 

$ 98.240.669 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

CO MBINE[) STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND TYPES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

REVEN UES: 
Local sources: 
Property taxes 
Sakes and use taxes 
Tuition and other 
Interest incom e 
Other 
State sources 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EX PEN DITURES: 
Instruction 
Supporting services 
Non-instru ction 

Tota l expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVFNUES 
OVER EXPENDITURF.S 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Transfers to component unit 

General Fund 
A ctual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 14,789,821 
106,551,11 l 

699,963 
1,021,414 
3,139,056 

132,677,935 
944.613 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 14,833,273 
106,032,051 

837,000 
900,000 

3,376,818 
133,173,044 

800.000 

259.823.913 259.952.186 

175,045,515 
87,636,083 

11.875 

262.693.473 

173,320,890 
88,129,329 

51r535 

v anance- 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

$ (43,452) 
519,060 
(137,037) 
121,414 

(237,762) 
(495,109) 
144.613 

(128,273) 

(1,724,625) 
493,246 
39.660 

261,501,754 (1fl91,719) 

(2,869,560) (1,549,568) _(1,319,992) 

80,766 
(3,476,132) (450,000) (3,410,394) 

80,766 
(65,738) 

. . (450,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses)- net (3,845,366) (3,410,394) . (434,972) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
AND OTH ER FINANCIN G SOURCES 
OVER EXPENDITURFS AND OTHER 
FINANCIN G USES (6,714,926) (4,959,962) (1,754,964) 

ENCUM BRAN CES OW FSTAN DIN G 
AT YEAR END 4,749,352 4,749,352 

PRIOR YEAR ENCUM BRANCES EXPENDED 
IN CURRENT YE AR (2,15o,264) (2,15o,264) 

FUND BALAN CES AT BEGINN IN G OF YE AR 
(GAAPBASIS) 15,264,530 16.117.032 

FUN D BALAN CES AT END OF YEAR 
(GAAPBASIS) $ 11,148,692 $ 13,756,158 

The notes to financial statements are an  integral part of this statement 
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EXHIBIT C-3 

Soecial Revenue Funds 
A ctual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

Revised 
Budget 

v ariance- 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$3,011,747 $2,754,000 $ 257,747 

498,104 
386.3]] 

3.896.162 

1,318,191 
598,645 

1.736.673 

3.653.509 

452,898 
450.000 

3.656.898 

1,473,647 
549,423 

1.629.g91 

3.652.961 

45,206 
(63,689) 

239~264
. 

155,456 
(49,222) 
(106~782) 

.. (54s) 

242,653 3,937 238.716 

242,653 3,937 238,716 

1.225.664 1,225 6
.,t~464 

$1r468,317 $1,229,601 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM EXHIBIT C-4 

STATEMENT O F REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - SCHOOL LUNCH ENTERPRISE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

OPERATIN G REVENUE - 
Food service sales 

OPERA TING EXPENSES: 
Salaries and related  bcnefits 
Food costs 
M aterial an d supplies 
Contractual service s 
Depreciation 
M isce llaneous 
Printing 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel 

Total 

OPERA TING LOSS 

NONOPERA TING RE VENUES: 
Interest on investm ents 
Federal grants in aid: 
Donated co mm odities 
School lunch and breakfast program 

Total 

NET LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 

OPERA TIN G TRANSFERS/N 

NET LOSS 

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNIN G OF YEAR 

RE TAIN ED EARNIN GS AT END OF YE AR 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

$ 2i420,933 

10,348,768 
6,613,935 
930,438 
197,479 
476,855 
9,611 
9,488 

406,735 
20,401 
602~500 

19.616.210 

(17,19S,277) 

183,822 

1,115,765 
12,327~233 

13.626.820 

(3,568,457) 

3.097.722 

(470,735) 

940.828 

470.093 



JEFFERSO N PAR ISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 
SCHOOL LUNCH ENTERPRISE FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

EXHIBIT C-5 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATIN G LOSS TO NET CASH 
USED 1N OPERATIN G ACTIVITIES: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in 
operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Donated commodities used  
Change in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease in accounts receivable 
Increase in inventories 
Increase in accounts payable 
Decrease in compensated  absences 

Net cash used in operating activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM  N ON CAPITAL FIN AN CIN G ACTIVITIES 
Federal grants in aid 
Decrease in due to other funds 
Operating transfers in 

Net cash provided by noncapital finan cing activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM  CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCIN G 
ACTIVITIES - 
Acquisition of capital assets 

CASH FLOW S FROM  INVESTING ACTIVITIES - 
Interest received  

NET DECREASE 1N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGIN NIN G OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

N ON CASH INV ESTING, CAPITAL, AN D FIN AN CIN G ACTIVITIES 
Donated  co mm odities received 
Donated  comm odities used  

Total noncash investing, capital, and financing activities - net 

The notes to financial statements are an  integral part of this statement 
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$(17,195,277) 

476,855 
1,032,387 

4,706 
(64,575) 
13,346 
(10,904) 

(15,743,462) 

12,327,233 
(2,053,344) 
3.097.722 

13.371.611 

~31,819) 

183.822 

(2;519,848) 

2r569,029 

$ 49.181 

$ 1,115,765 
(1,032,387) 

$ 83.378 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUB LIC SCH O O L SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

EXHIBIT C-6 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUM M ARY OF SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Jefferson Parish Public School System (the School System) is an independent special district created for 
th e purpose & providing elementary and secondary education to th e citizens of Jefferson Parish, Louisiana. 
Th e School System is governed by an  elected board comprised of nine members. 

Th e following is a sumnmry of the Schoo l System's significant accounting policies which conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governm ental units: 

Reporting Entity - In conformity wi th the Governmental Accounting Standa rds Board's (GASB) definition of 
a reporting entity, the general purpose financial statements of the Schoo l System include the acco unts of all 
Schoo l System operations. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, th ese financial 
statementS present th e Schoo l System as the primary government. Th e Schoo l System has one component 
unit, the Jefferson Community Charter Schoo l, which is presented as  a discretely presented  component unit. 
The Jefferson Community Cha rter Schoo l is included  in the reporting entity because it is fiscally dependent on 
th e School System . Th e purp ose of th e Cha rter Schoo l is to  provide an  alternative m iddle schoo l for at-risk 
public schoo l students in the sixth, seventh an d eighth grade who have been expelled  from th e parish public 
sahoo l system to learn appropriate beha vioral an d academic skills enabling th em to return as  functioning, 
responsible participants in the public middle an d high schoo ls. The component unit also has a 3une 30 year 
end. Complete financial statements ofthe co mponent unit can be obtained  from the Charter Schoo l. The 
Schoo l System an d its component unit represent the reporting entity. Additionally, the Schoo l System is a 
legally-separate governmental organization that has a separately elected  governing body and does not meet the 
definition of a com ponent unit. 

Basis ofPresentatlon - Fund Accounting - Th e accoun ts of the Schoo l System are organized on the basis of 
funds or account groups, each of which is co ns idered a separate acco unting entity . The operations  nf  each 
fund are acco un ted for with a separate set of self-balan cing accounts that co mprise its as sets, liabilities, 
reserves, fu nd balan ce, revenues an d expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Th e various funds  are 
summarized by type in the fin ancial statements. Th e following fxmd types, acco unt groups and discretely 
presented component unit are used  by th e Schoo l System: 

Governm ental Fund Types 

General Fund - to accoun t for all financial resources and expenditures exce pt those req uired  to be accoun ted 
for in anoth er fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than for major capital 
projects) that are legally restricted to cxpenritme f~r specified px~rposes. 

Debt Service Funds - to account for the accumulation of resources for, an d the payment of, general long-term 
debt principal an d interest an d related co sts. 

Capital Projects Funds - to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). 

- 13- 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

Proprietary Fund Type 

Enterprise Fund- to account for operations that are financed and operated  in a manner sim ilar  to private 
business enterprises, where the governing body has decided that pe riodic determination of revenues earned, 
expens es incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital rnaintenance , public policy, management control 
accountability, or other purposes. The only enterprise fund maintained  by th e School System is th e Schoo l 
Lunch Fund which provides lunch, breakfast and milk to students at reduce d prices. 

Fiduciary Fund Type 

Agency Funds - to account for assets held by the School System as an  agent for others 

Account G roups 

Account groups are used  to establish accoun ting control and accountability for th e Schoo l System's General 
Fixed  Assets an d General Long-Term Debt. The following are th e Schoo l System's Accoun t Groups: 

General FixedAssets Account Group - Fixed as sets used  in Governmental Fun d Type operations are 
accounted for in th e General Fixed As sets Account Group, ra th er than in governm ental funds. General fixed  
assets co nsist of land, buildings and improvements, an d equipment with an  expected useful life of more than 
one year. Purchases of general fixed  as sets are recorded  as  expenditures at the time of purchase. 
Deprec iation is not recorded  on general fixed  as sets. 

GeneralLong-Term D ebt A ccount Group - Lo ng-te rm liabilities such as  unmatu red genera l obligation 
indebtedness and th e long-term portion of compensated absence s expec ted to be financed from governmental 
funds  are accounted for in th e General Lo ng-Term  Debt Account Group. 

Com ponent Unit 

The component unit of the Schoo l System is accounted for as a Governmental Fun d Typ e 

Basis of Accounting - The acxxmnting an d financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus. The Governmental Fun d Typ es are acco un ted for using a current financial resource s 
measurement foc us. W ith th is measurement foc us, only current as sets an d current liabilities generally are 

included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues an d other 
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures an d other financing uses) in net current assets. 

Th e modified  accrual bas is of aec oun ting is followed  by th e Governmental Fund Types an d th e Agency 
Funds . Under th e mod ified  accrual bas is of acc oun ting, revenues are recorded  when susce ptible to accru al 

(i.e., both measurable and available). Available means collectible wi thin the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to be used  to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures, other than principal an d interest on 

long-term debt, compensated absences, an d claims an d judgments which are recognized when due, are 
recorded  when the fund liability is incurred , if measurable. 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

Revenues from local source s consist primarily of sales and use and prope rty taxes. Yeas -cad  accrual of sales 
and use tax revenue is based upon June and prior months' sales and use taxes collected during July and 
August of the following year. Property tax revenues an d revenues received from the State of Louisiana (the 
State) are recognized as revenue primarily as received except at year end when they are accrued for a period 
not exceeding 60 days. M isce llan eous revenues are recorded  as revenue when received in cash because th ey 
are generally not measurable until actually received . Generally, investment earnings are recorded  as  earned  
since th ey are measurable and available. 

Grant funds are co ns idered  to be earn ed to the extent of expenditu res made under th e provisions of the grant 
and, acco rdingly, when such funds are received, th ey are recorded as deferred  revenue until earn ed. 

The Proprietary Fund Type is acco unted for on a flow of ec onom ic resources m easurement focus. W ith this 
measurement focus, all as sets and all liabilities as sociated  with the ope ration of this fund are included  on the 

balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) consists solely of retained earnings. The Proprietary Fund 
Typ e operating statement presents increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets 

Th e accrual bas is of acco unting is utilized by th e Proprietary Fund Type. Under this bas is of ace oun ting, 
revenues are reco gnized  when earned, and expens es are recognized when th e related  liability is incurred. 

Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary 
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Aec ounting, th e School System has 
elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board gu idance  issued  subseq uent to N ovember 30, 
1989. 

Effective July I, 1997, th e School System adopted the provisions of Governmental Acc oun ting Standards  
Board Statement (GASBS) No. 31, Accounting an d Financial Reporting for Certain Investments an d for 
External Investm ent Pools." GASBS No. 31 requires all investm ents be reported at fair value wi th gains an d 
losses included  in th e statement of revenues an d expenses. The effect for the year ended  June 30, 1998 was to 
increase interest income by $179,568. There was  no effect on inco me or eq uity for the year ended  June 30, 
1997. 

Use of Estimates - Th e preparation of financial statements in conformity wi th generally accepted accounting 
principles req uires management to make estimates an d as sumptions  that affec t the reported am oun ts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of co ntingent as sets an d liabilities at th e da te of the financial statements. 
Estimates also affec t the reported am ounts of revenues and expens es during th e reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Budget and Budgetary Accountlng - Under Louisiana Revised  Statutes 17:88 and 39:1301-1314, the School 
Board adopts an annual budget of expec ted revenues an d probable expenditu res for th e Genera l Fun d and two 
of its Special Revenue Fun ds (the Adult Education and Community Education Fun ds). The budgetary process 
includes public notice  of th e proposed  budget, public inspection of th e proposed  budget, an d public hearings 
on th e budget. The budget is ad opted an d submitted to the State Department of Education no later than 
September 15 ea ch yea r. Once  a budget is approved  by th e State Departm ent of Ed ucation, it can be am ended 
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at the function level at file discretion of management unless it becomes evident that receipts or disbursements 
will vary substantially from those budgeted. Then, the School Board shall prepare and adopt an am ended 
budget. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed  as a management control device during the year for the General 
Fund and two Special Revenue Funds (the Adult Education and Community Education Funds). Budgetary 
control is exercised  at the revenue an d expenditure function level. Formal budgetary integration is not 

employed for the other Special Revenue, Debt Service an d Capital Projects funds since their expenditures are 
co ntrolled by contractual arrangements. Budgeted am ounts reflected in the accompanying general purpose 
finan cial statements for th e General Fund were adopted by the Schoo l Board on June 4, 1997, and include 
am endments nmde through Jan uary 14, 1998~ Special Revenue Funds  budgets were adopted by the Schoo l 
Board on M ay 21, 1997. Th ere were no am endments to th e Special Revenue Funds budget for the current 
fiscal year. 

The Schoo l System's budget includes encumbered  am oun ts. Accordingly, th e budgetary bas is expenditu re 

data reflecu~ in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures an d Changes in Fun d Balan ces - Budg et 
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) an d Actual - General an d Special Revenue Fund Types (Exhibit C-3) includes 
encumbran ces an d, thus, differs from th e expenditure data reflec ted in the Combined  Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balan ces - All Governmental Fun d Types and Discretely Presented 
Component Unit (Exhibit C-2) by the amoun t of the net change in encumbran ces outstanding at year end. Th e 
General Fun d represents the only budgeted fund wi th encum brance s outstanding at yea r-end. A reconciliation 
of th e differences between actual da ta an d amounts on a budgetary basis is presented  below: 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues an d other sources over 
expenditures an d other uses (budgetary basis) 
To reverse June 30, 1998 encumbrance s recorded as  
expenditures on th e budgetary basis 
To add back prior year's encumbrance s paid in 1998, 
but not recorded  as expenditu res in 1998 

General 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue 
Fund== 

$(6,7!4,926) $242,653 

~ 4,749,352' 

(2~ 150,264) 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues an d other sources over 
expenditures and other uses (GAAP basis) $(4,115,838) $242,653 

Encumbrances - Commitm ents related to unperformed  exec utory contracts for goods or service s, such as 
outstanding purchase orders an d unco mpleted  co ntracts, are recorded  as eneumbrance s in order to  reserve th e 
applicable portion of th e appropriation. Appropriations are valid for th e year for which made, an d an y part of 
such appropriation which is not en cum bered  or expended lapses at the end of the yea r. Encum brance s 
outstanding at yea r-end are reported as reservations of fund balance s since they rep resen t authority for 
expenditu re in th e subsequent year. Encum brance s do not constitute GAAP expenditu res or liabilities. As 
materials are subsequently received, liabilities are recorded , an d th e related  encumbrance s are eliminated. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, th e Schoo l Lunch Enterp rise Fund 

considers all short-term , highly liquid investm ents (including certificates of deposit) wi th original ma turity of 
three months or less when purchased  to be cash eq uivalents. 
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Investments - Investm ents are stated at fair value 

Inventories - The School Lunch Enterprise Fund inventories co nsist of purchased food and supplies an d 
commodities received as donations through the federal school lunch program. Such inventories are priced at 
cost (except for co mmodities received as donations which are priced using the USDA price list for 
co mmodities) on a first-in, first-out basis. 

Land, Buildings and Equipment, Net - General fixed  as sets which are purchas ed are recorded  at co st or 
estimated  historical co st. Actual historica l co st data was not available for buildings an d improvements 
acquired  or constructed prior to 1975. In th ose cases where it was not feasible to determine th e actual cost, 
the buildings and improvements were valued at estimated  historica l cost by using price indices. General fixed  
assets which are donated  are recorded  at their fair market value on th e da te received . No depreciation has 
been provided on general fixed  as sets. See Note 15 regarding a restatement made to the July 1, 1997 
am ounts . 

Fixed  as sets as sociated with the activities of the School Lunch Enterp rise Fund are recorded  as  as sets of that 
fund and consist primarily of equipment. Depreciation of such as sets is co mputed  on the straight-line method 
over th eir estimated  useful life of 12 years. Purchased  fixed  as sets of the Schoo l Lunch Enterp rise Fund are 
stated at co st or estimated  historical co st, less accumulated  depreciation of $4,227,492 at June 30, 1998. 

Com pensated Absences 

A . Vacation and Sick Leave - All full-time employees of th e Schoo l System are perm itted to acc rue sick 

pay (sick leave). Since fiscal year 1994, vacation da ys (annual leave) accrued in one fiscal year are to 
be used by the end of the sam e fisca l year unless the Administrative Departm ent head determines that the 
work as signm ent of th e employee requesting the annual leave is such th at th e employee should not take 
annual leave during that particular fisca l year, an d this ca rryover is approved  by th e Superintendent. 
Annual lea ve and sick leave may accrue to an  unlim ited  number of da ys. Upon termina tion of 
employment, th e employee  is paid for all annual'lca ve accrued  prior to fisca l yea r 1994 at 1994 da ily 
salary rates and post 1994 accru ed annual leave approved  by th e Administrative Departm ent head at 
current daily salary rates an d accru ed  sick lea ve up to a maximum of 25 days at current da ily salary 
rates. 

Annual an d sick lea ve liabilities are recorded  as an  expense when incurred  in the Schoo l Lunch 
Enterp rise Fund. In th e governmental funds, only that portion which is expected to be liquida ted  within 
one year wi th expenda ble available financial resource s is accrued  at year-end. The rema inder of the 
accru ed  liability whi ch is applica ble to Governm ental Fun d Types is reported in the General Long-Term 
Debt Account Group. Only that portion of acc umulated  sick leave which is vested  is accru ed . Th e 
am oun t of accum ulated vaca tion and acc umulated vested  sick lea ve at June 30, 1998 ap plicable to 
Goverumental Fund Typ es was  $15,731,637, none of which met the condition for acc rual in th e 
Governm ental Fund Types; hence , the entire am oun t is reported  in the General Long-Term Debt Account 
Group. 
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B. Sabbatical Leave - Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval, to one 
semester of sabbatical leave after three or more years of continuous service or two semesters of 
sabbatica l leave after six or more years of co ntinuous service. Sabbatica l leaves may be granted for rest 
and recuperation or professional and cultural improvement and must be approved  by the School Board. 
Unused  sabbatica l lea ve ma y be  ca rried forward to periods subsequent to that in which it is ea rned . 
Sabbatica l leave does not vest. 

Acc umulated sabbatica l lea ve for which paym ent is probable is accrued . That portion of acc umulated 
sa bbatica l lea ve which is expected to  be  liquidated  within one yea r wi th expenda ble available financial 
resources is accru ed  in the Governmental Fund Types, an d th e remainder is reported in th e General 
Long-Term Debt Account Group. The amoun t of ac cumulated sabbatica l leave at June 30, 1998 for 
which pa3~nent is probable was $21,460,352, none of which met the co ndition for accru al in th e 
Govern mental Fund Typ es; hence , th e entire am ount is reported in th e General Long-Term  Debt Account 
Group. 

Total Columns on ComblnedStatements - Total co lum ns on th e combined  general purpose financial 
statements are captioned  "M emorandum only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate fin ancial 
analysis. Data in these co lumns do not present finan cial position, results of operations an d cash flows in 
conform ity wi th generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such da ta co mpara ble to  a co nsolida tion 
In terfund eliminations  have not bee n made in the aggregation of this da ta . 

New Accounting Pronouncements - The GASB has issued  GASBS No. 32, "Accounting an d Financial 

Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans," in October 1997. GASBS 
No. 32 was issued  in response to a change in Internal Revenue Cod e Section 457 on August 20, 1996. This 
Code Section now requires th at all assets an d inco me of the deferred  co mpensation plans established  under 
this code must be held in tru st for the exclusive benefit of th e participan ts an d their be neficiaries. Existing 
plans are rtx/uired  to co mply wi th this req uirement by Jan uary 1, 1999. Once the School System 's Deferred 
Compensation Plan  is amended  to be  in co nform ity wi th the Code Sec tion, th e School System wi ll no longer 
be required  to present this fund as an  Agency Fund in its firiancial statements. 

The GASB has also issued  GASB Technica l Bulletin No. 98-I. "Disclosures about Yea r 2000 Issues." This 
technica l bulletin was issued  to address the type of disclosures that should be  presented  in th e financial 
statements about compliance wi th yea r 2000 issues for a government's internal computer systems an d oth er 
electronic eq uipment. Among other things, governments wi ll be required  to disclose any significant am ount of 
resources co mm itted to make co mputer systems an d other elec tronic equipment yea r 2000-compliant, and a 
general description of the year 2000 issue as  it relates to th eir organization. This disclosure wi ll include a 
description of th e stages of work in process or co mpleted as  of th e end of th e governm ent's reporting period , 
and th e ad ditional stages of work necessary . Th e provisions of this technica l bulletin are effec tive for 
financial statements on which th e audito r's repo rt is da ted after October 31, 1998, an d th e Schoo l System 
will, th erefore, be req uired  to ad opt this technica l bulletin in fisca l 1999. 
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2. CASH AND INVESTM ENTS 

Deposits - In accordance with Louisiana Statutes, the School System maintains deposits at th ose depository 
banks authorized by the Schoo l Board. All such depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System . 

Lo uisiana Statutes require that all School System deposits be protected by insurance or collateral. The market 
value of collateral pledged must eq ual 100% of the deposits not co vered by insurance. 

Bank balances of $28,137,061 (primary government only) at June 30, 1998 were insured or collateralized by 
securities held by the Schoo l System or its agent in th e School System's nam e. 

Investm ents 

Cash balance s of the School System's funds are pooled and invested to th e extent possible in authorized 
investments. Interest earn ed  on invested cash is distributed to th e various funds on th e bas is of th e actual 
invested cash balan ces of the participating funds  during the year, 

']~he School System may invest idle funds as auth orized by Lo uisiana Statu tes
, as  follows 

(a) Direct United States Treasury obligations, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the 
governm ent of th e United  States. 

(b) United States government agency obligations, the principal and interest of which are fully gu aranteed by 
th e government of the United States, or United States government obligations, the principal and interest 
of which are gu aranteed by an), United States government ag ency. 

(c) 

(d) 

Direct sec urity repurchase agreements of any federal boo k entry only securities enumerated in 
paragraphs (a) and (b). 

Tim e ce rtifica tes of deposit of state banks organized under th e laws of Louisiana an d national banks 
having th eir principal office in th e state of Louisiana. 

(e) Mutual or trust funds, which are registered wi th the Securities an d Exchange Commission under the 
Security Act of 1933 and th e In vestm ent Act of 1940 and whi ch have un derlying investm ents co ns isting 
solely of an d lim ited  to sec urities of th e United  States government or its agencies. 

Th e Schoo l System's investments ar e categorized below to give an  indica tion of the level of risk as sumed  at 
year-end. Category 1 includes investm ents that are insured  or registered or for which the securities are held 
by th e Schoo l System or its ag ent in th e Schoo l System's nam e. Category  2 includes uninsured an d 
unregistered  investm ents for which the securities are held by th e co an terparty's trust dep am nen t or agent in 
the School System's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered  investments for which the 
securities are held by the coun terparty, or by its tru st departm ent or ag ent, but not in the Schoo l System's 
nam e. 
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Balances at June 30, 1998 were as follows 

Securities 
Type 

U. S. Government 

Investm ent in deferred compensation 
mutual fund and insuran ce contracts 

Total investm ents 

Total deposits 

Total eas h and investm ents 

3. GENERAL FIXED ASSETS 

Credit Risk Category 
1 2 3 

Carry ing 
Value 

$ - $ 80,223,111 

A summar5, of chan ges in general fixed  as sets follows: 

Balance 

July 1,1997 Additions Deletions 

(As Restated) 

Land and improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipm ent 

Total 

$ 14,482,459 
216,493,931 
32,977,994 

$263.954.384 

$ 1,133,550 
20,181,899 
8,396,993 

$ 
15,949 

4.493.708 

4.018.352 

84,241,463 

24,784,959 

$109,026,422 

Ba lance 

June30.1998 

$ 15,616,009 
236,659,881 
36,881~279 

$289.157.169 

See Note 15 for a description of the restatement made to th e July 1, 1997 beginning balan ces 

4. PROPERTY TAX 

Property tax is due and becomes an  enforceable lien on property on th e first day of th e m onth following the 

filing of the tax rolls by the assessor with the Louisiana Tax Commission (usually December 1). The tax is 
delinquent thirty days after the due da te. The property tax assessment for fiscal 1998 was  formally levied  on 
November 15, 1997 bas ed  on property values determined  by th e Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office . All lan d 
an d residential improvements are as sessed  at 10%  of its fair market value an d oth er property at 15%  of its 
m arket value. The tax is billed  an d co llected by th e Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Offi ce which receives certain 
millage for its service s. M ost of the property taxes are received  by th e School System in the month of 
January; however, delinquent property taxes are rece ived  throughout the year and are recognized as revenue 
primarily when th ey are received exce pt at year--end when they are accrued  for a period not exceeding 60 days 
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Property tax is assessed for maintenance an d operation an d debt service  for the School System as follows 

No. of 
M ills 

M aintenan ce an d Operation 
Debt Service  

5. SALES AND USE TAX 

9.91 
4.00 

For th e year ended June 30, 1998, a 4.75%  local sales an d use tax was levied  an d collected within Jefferson 
Parish by th e Jefferson Parish Sheriff s Office  of which 2% was  received  by the School System and dedicated  
for th e following purposes: 

1/2% (approved M ay 3, 1966) for teachers' salaries an d operating expenses 
1/2% (approved October 5, 1954 and Jan uary 12, 1971) for debt service purposes, for making capital 
improvements and/or for operating expenses (lids represents 50% of a 1% tax levied by the Parish and 
ded icatezl to the School System.) 

1/4% (approved June 28, 1980) for making capital improvements, with an thorily to issue 
additional bonds for such purpose , and paying th e related  maintenance and ope rating expenses 

1/4% (approved June 28. 1980) for increasing salaries and fringe benefits of schoo l tea chers an d other employees 
1/2% (approved Oc tober 3, 1992) for increasing salaries an d be nefits of schoo l tea chers and other employees, 
establishing guidance programs, payment of debt service, an d instruction and maintenance  expense 

6. ISSUANCE AND DEFEASANCE OF BONDS 

On April 21, 1998, the School System issued $33,380,000 (M aturity Amount) in Sales Tax School Board 
Refunding Bonds - Series 1998, for the purpose of ad vance refunding $5,814,732 of the rema ining 
$24,786/112 of 1980 1/4 Sales "Fax  Bonds - Series 1986A. The Refunding Bonds , which were issued  at a 
deep discount, have an  initial interest rate of 4.75% . Interest co mpounds semiannually but is not paid to 
bondholders until ma tu rities begin in 2006. The Refimding Bonds require principal and interest payments on 
September 1 an d M arch 1 of each year beginning September 1, 2006, an d until which time that th ey ma ture 
on M arch 1, 2010. Principal and interest paym ents will be $8,345,000 beginning in 2007 until final ma turity 
in 2010. On th e date of delivery of th e Refunding Bonds, $20,076,067 was deposited in escrow an d $196,975 
was paid for issuan ce cost. Th e Refu nding Bonds  were issued  with an  underwriters discoun t of $194,442. As 
a result of the Refunding, th e School System wi ll see a red uction in its debt service  req uirements of 
approximately $130,000 per year until final maturity in 2010 and an overall economle gain of $1.1 million on 
th e refunding. 
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GENERAL LONG-TERM  DEBT 

The following is a summary of changes in general long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 1998 (in 
thousands of dollars): 

Tax Bonds 
Co~ l>enM ted Claims and ~  Valorem 15164 ~lles 11180 M les 
Absences Judgments Tax Bonds Tax Bo nds Tax Bonds Total 

Balance at July I, 1997 $ 37,236 $295 $ 6,795 $132,095 $28,335 $204.756 

Bonds issued 
Bonds retired 
Bonds called  or refunded  
increase (decrease) in long-term 
portion of liability 

Balance at Jtme 30. 1998 

OA) 

$ 37,192 

25 

$ 320 

(3,955) 
20,467 20,467 

(7,325) (3,548) (14,828) 
(5,815) (5,815) 

(19) 

Bonded  debt at June 30, 1998 is comprised  of th e following serial bond issues 

Description 

Ad valorem lax bonds: 
$10,000,000  issue of 3/1/70 
$18,150,000 issue of 4/15/74 
Selies 1 
$14,080,000 issue of 4/15174 
Series 2 
$4,770,000 issue of 4115/74, 
Selies 3 

Total 

1954 1/2~ sales tax bo nds : 
$70,000,000 refunding issue of 
6/17/92 
$16,180,000 refunding issue of 
1/1/94 
$50,000,000 issue of 1/19/96 

Total 

Interest 
Rate= 

6.00 

4.50-6.00 

4.50-6 .00 

4.50-6 .00 

5.20-6.25 

3.80-4.45 
4.75-6.00 

1980 I/4~ sales tax bo nds : 
$53,645,264 refunding issue of 
7/10/86, Series A 7.70-8.50 
$33,380,000 refunding issue 
of 4/21/98 4.75-5.10 

Total 

TOTAL 

Final 
Maturity 
Date 

Range of Annual 
Principal Payments 

From To 
Am ounf 

Outst anding 

3/01/00 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 100 ,000 

4/15/99 

4/15/99 

4/15/99 

2~ 1~ 8 

2~ 1/00  
2~ 1~ 7 

3/01/06 

3/01/10 
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1,265,000 1,340,000 1,340,000 

980,000 

330.000  

1,045,000 1,045,000 

355,000 355,00 0 

2.840.000 

395,000 9,995,000 67,535,000 

4,425,000 
1,660,000 

5,480,000 
4,280,000 

9,905,00 0 
47.330.000 

124.770.000 

828,387 1,635,296 18,971,680 

4,676,738 5,558,609 20,467,485 

39.439.165 

$167.049.165 
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Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - The ad valomm tax bonds are payable solely from, and sec ured  by, a special tax 
imposed and collected annually in excess of all other taxes on all of the property subject to taxation within the 
territorial lim its of School District No. 1 of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. At June 30, 1998, there was 
$2,330,321 available in th e debt service funds  for servicing of th ese bo nds. 

1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bonds - Th e Series 1992 bonds , Series 1994 bonds and Series 1995 bonds are payable 
so lely from, and secured by, an irrevocable pledge and ded ication of the proceeds of th e one-half percent 
(1/2%) sales an d use tax authorized to be levied in the parish pursuant to elections held therein on October 5, 
1954 an d January 12, 1971. At June 30, 1998, $21,417,522 was available in the debt service funds  for 
servicing of th ese bonds. 

1980 1/4~ Sales Tax  Bonds - Th e Series 1998 an d 1986A bonds are payable solely from, and sec ured by, an  
irrevocable pledge an d dedication of the proceeds of a special one-fourth percent (1/4%) sales and use tax 
auth orized to be levied in the parish pursuant to an  election held therein on June 28, 1980. At June 30, 1998, 
$13,244,057 was available in the debt service funds  for servicing of these bonds. 

The annual debt service requirements (including interest of$114,319,013) to amortize all of the School 
System 's outstanding bonds as of June 30, 1998 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004-2008 
2009-2010 

Total 

Ad Valorem 
Tax Bonds 

$2,919,300 
53,000 

1954 Salea 
Tax Bonda 

$ 14,739,495 
14,754,502 
14,761,253 
14,763,443 
14,763,560 

. 73,970,125 
30fi93,500 

1980 Salea 
Tax Bonds Total 

$ 8,330,000 
8,330,000 
8,330,000 
8,330,000 
8,330,000 
41,710,000 
16.690.000 

$178,345,878 $100,050,000 

$ 25,988,795 
23,137,502 
23,091,253 
23,093,443 
23,093,560 
115,680,125 
4~283r500 

Th ere are a number of limitations  an d restrictions contained  in th e various bond indentures. As of June 30 
1998, the School System was in co mplian ce with all significant limitations an d restrictions. 

Certain outstanding Sales Tax Bonds  of th e School System have been defeased  in prior years by placing th e 
proceeds of refunding bonds  into irrevocable escrow accounts held an d managed by bank trustees an d invested 
in U. S. Treasury obligations , the principal an d interest on which would provide am oun ts sufficient to pay all 
fu ture debt service  req uirements of th e old bonds . Accordingly, th e escrow accounts and the liability for th e 
defeased bonds are not included  in th e Schoo l System's financial statements. 
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The defeased bonds ouLs'tanding at June 30, 1998 are as follows 

1954 1[2~ Sales Tax Bonds: 
$11,800,000 Series 1982C 
$32,250,000 Series 1983AB 
$15,000,000 Series 1983D 
$64,625,000 Series 1986A 

Total 

1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bonds: 
$45,000,000 Series 1981B 
$53,645,264 Series 1986A 

TOTAL 

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

$ 5,220,000 
11,660,000 
14,925,000 
64.625.000 

96.430.000 

11,400,000 
5.814.732 

_  
17,214r732 

$113.644,732 

Fom aal budgetary appropriations are adopted for the General Fun d and two Special Revenue Funds . 
Expenditures are budgeted at the function level, which is th e level at which expenditures may not legally 
exce.~  appropriations. During fiscal year 1998, the General Fund expenditures for instruction exceeded 
appropriations by $1,724,625. Total budgeted revenues for th e General Fund exceeded th ose amounts 
budgeted by $128,273. The Community Educa tion Fund expenditures for supporting an d non-instruction 
services exceeded  appropriations by $30,691 and $106,782, respectively; however, total revenues for th e 
Community Educa tion Fund exceeded  th ose am ounts budgeted by $268,545. Additionally, during fisca l year 
1998, the Adult Education Fun d expenditures for supporting service s exceeded appropriations  by $18,531. 
Total budgeted revenues for the Adult Educa tion Fund exceeded actu al am ounts by $29,281; however, at the 
fund level, revenues net of expenditures exceeded  budget by $80,310. 
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EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Individual fund interfund receivables and payables as of June 30, 1998 were as follows: 

General 

Fund 

Special Revenue: 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Tide I) 
Elementary an d Seconda~ Ed ucation ACt of 1965 (Title HI) 
Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (T itle VII) 
Individuals with Disabilities Educa tion Act of 1990 - part B 
Vocational Ed ucation 
Job Training Partnership ACt 
Education for Econom ic Security Act Title II 
Indian t~ uca fion Act 
Drug Free Schools and Communities 
Em ergency Imm igration Act 
Title XIX Schoo l Nurse 
Child Care an d Development Block Grant 
Adult Educa tion 
Com munity Educa tion 
State Program s 

Total 

Debt Service: 
Ad Valnrem Tax Bond Sinking 
1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
1954 1/2~ Sales Tax  Bond Reserve 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 

Total 

Capital Projects 
Ca pital 
Sales Tax 

Total 

Proprietary - Enterprise  

Fiduciary - Agency  

TOTAL 
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~ twlund 
Receivable= 

$14.917.695 

101,722 
278 
14 

15,862 
96,169 
11,154 
9,808 

12,173 

55 

. . 
911,273 

1,158,508 

4,366,467 

2,494,524 

6.860.991 

2,000,000 
6.819.090 

8.819.090 

Inlerfund 
payables 

9,277,406 

2,664,551 
211,108 
99,816 
753,023 
191,518 
47,052 
173,462 
9,159 

739,256 
40,884 
35,673 
129,830 
97,127 
834,319 

~ 5~927,327 

11.954.105 

15,307 
791,817 

463.715 

1~270,839 

2,739,465 
5.605.459 

. .
8~344,924 

906.639 

2r371 

$31,756,284 $31,756,284 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

prim aO' Governm ent/Com ponent Unit Receivables and Payables 

Receivables and payables between the primary govenmlent and its component unit at June 30, 1998 were as follows 

Primary Government: 
General Fund 

Component Unit: 
The Jefferson Community Charter School 

TOTAL 

$61,391 

$61,391 

$61,391 $61,391 

Operating Transfers by Fund Type - PHm ary Go vern m ent 

A summ ary of operating transfers by fund type fur the year ended June 30, 1998 is as follows 

Genera l Fund 

Transfers To or From 

Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 
Schoo l Lunch Enterprise Fund 

Total 

.~:~.cial Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Fuuds 

Total 

Debt Service Funds 

Capital Projects Funds 
Debt Service Funds 

Total 

Capita/Projects Funds 

Ge neral Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service Funds 

Ca pital Projects Funds 

Total 

School Lunch Enterorise Fund 

Ge neral Fund 

TOTAL  OPERATING TRANSFERS 
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Operating 
Transfers In 

Operating 
Transfers Out 

$ g0,766 $ 108,410 
270,000 
3.09%722 

80.766 

108,410 
633 

513.023 

622.066 

482,484 
1,255,532 

1.738.016 

270,000 

1,968,299 
83L332 

3.069.631 

3.097.722 

3.476.132 

8~766 
633 

8L399 

1,968,299 

~ 1~255,532 

3,223,831 

513,023 
482,484 
831.332 

1.826.839 

$ 8,608,201 $ 8,608,201 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

Prim ary Governm ent/Com ponent Unit Transfers 

Transfers bc~ ,ecn th e primmy government and its component unit at June 30, 1998 were as follows: 

Trantfers Trsnsfecs 

in Out 

C~enera] Fund~ rim arv Governm en 

Component Unit: 
The Jefferson Com m unity Charier School 

.C,_gmpo nent 

General FunddPrimary Governm ent 

TOTAL PRIM ARY GOVERNM ENT/COM PONENT UNIT 
TRANSFERS 

9. RETIREM ENT PLANS 

$450,000 

$ 450,000 

Substantially all employees of the School System are required by State law to belong to retirement plans 
administered by the Teachers' Retirement System fIRS) or the School Employees' Retirement System 
(SERS), both of which are administered on a statewide basis. Each plan issues a separate financial report that 
includes financial statements an d req uired supplementary inform ation. Those reports may be obtained  by 
writing or calling the plan . 

Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana 
Post Office Box 94123 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 

(504) 925-6446 

Disclosures relating to these plans follow: 

A . TEACH ERS' RETIREM ENT SYSTEM  

Louisiana Schoo l Employees' Retirement System 
Post Office Box 44516 
Baton Rouge, Lo uisiana 70804-4516 

(504) 924-6484 

1. Plan Description - All teachers, administrators, and sehoo l lunch employees of the Schoo l System 
are covered by defined  benefit contributory pension plans administered an d co ntrolled  by a separate 
Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees administers plans which are cost-sharing 
m ultiple-employer public employee  retirement systems, 

All teachers, administrators, an d schoo l lunch employee s are eligible to participate in th e TRS 
plans. Teachers and administrators belong to the Teachers' Regular Plan, and school lunch 
employees be long to the Teachers' Plan B plan . Benefits are established by State statute. 
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EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

TRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability be nefits. Death and disability 
be nefits vest atter 5 years of credited service. Normal retirement is at age 60 with 10 years of 
service or 20 years of service regardless of age for the Teachers' Regular plan  members. For th e 
Teachers' Plan B plan members, normal retirement is at any age with 30 or more years of 
creditable service , at ag e 55 wi th at least 25 yea rs of creditable service, an d at age 60 wi th at least 
10 yea rs of creditable service . Retirement benefits are bas ed upon th e following form ula 
pe rce ntages: 

Years of 
Service 

lO 
20 
25 
30 
20 

M inim um Age Teachers' Regular Teachers' Plan B 

60 
Any ag e 
55 

An y ag e 
65 

1.0% -3.0%  per year 
1.0% -3.0%  per yea r 
1.0% -3.0% per yea r 
1.0%-3.0% per yea r 
1.0% -3.0%  per year 

The perce ntage formula is applied to the average of the highest three successive annual salaries. 
"l'be  benefit is payable for life wi th eight available annuity paym ent plan s. The plans also provide 
various dea th an d disability benefits, whereby the disabled  employee or surviving spouse is entitled 
to receive am ounts determined as  defined  by th e plan. 

2. Contributions Required and M ade - Covered  employee s and th e School System are required by 
State statute to co ntribute fixed  perce ntages of employee s' gross ea rnings to th e pension plans. 
Current contribution rates for th e plans are as  follows: 

Teachers' Regular 
Tea chers' Plan  B 

Em ployee 

8.00% 
5.00%  

Em ployer 

16.4%  
16.4% 

Th e School System 's contributions to TRS for the yea rs ended  June 30, 1998, 1997 an d 1996 were 
$26,916,756, $24,353,218 an d $23,971,304, respectively, equal to th e req uired  contributions for 
ea ch year. 

B. SCHOOL EM PLOYEES' RETIREM ENT SYSTEM  

1. Plan Descriptl"on - Employees who ar e not teachers, administrato rs, or school lunch employees are 
covered  by defined  benefit co ntributory pens ion plans administered  and controlled  on a statewi de 
bas is by a separate Board of Trustees. Th e Board of Trustees administers this plan  which is a 
co st-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system . 

All employee s, other than teachers, administrators, an d school lunch employees
, are eligible to 

participate in th e SERS. Benefits are established  by State statu te. 
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EXHIBIT C-6 

(Continued) 

SERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Death and disability 
benefits vest after 5 years of cred ited service. Normal retirement is at any age with 30 or more 
yea rs of cred itable service, at age 55 wi th at least 25 years of cred itable service, and at age 60 with 
at least 10 years of cred itable service . The maximum retirement an d disability be nefit is an  amount 
eq ual to 2 1/2% of the average compensation for the thrce  highest consecutive years of cred ited  
service, multiplied by the number of yea rs of service, plus a supplemen tary allowance  of $2.00 per 
month for each month of service. The plan also provides various death benefits, whereby th e 
disabled  employee  or surviving spouse is entitled  to receive amoun ts determined  as defined  by the 
plan. 

2. Contributions Required andM ade - Covered  employees an d th e School System are required  by 
State statute to co ntribute fixed  perce ntages of employees' gross earnings to the pension plans. 
Current contribution rates for th e plans are 6.35%  for partieipating employees and 6.00% for th e 
School System . 

The Schoo l System's co ntributions to SERS for the yea rs ended  June 30, 1998, 1997 an d 1996 
were $605,809, $573,107 an d $505,758, respectively, equal to th e req uired  contributions  for each 

10. DEFERRED COM PENSATION PLAN 

The School System offers its employees a deferred  co mpensation plan crea ted in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, pe rmits th em to defer a portion of their 
salaD, until future yea rs, up to 33.3% of annual gross earnings not to exce ed $7,500. Participation in th e plan  
is optional. Th e deferred  co mpens ation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, disability, 
dea th or in the event of an  unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of co mpens ation deferred un der the plan , all 
property an d righ ts purchased wi th those am oun ts, and all income attributable to those am oun ts, property or 
righ ts are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the prope rty an d rights of 
the School System subject only to the claims of the School System's general creditors. Amoun ts set aside 
under this plan are reported in Ageney Fun ds. Participants' righ ts under the plan are equal to those of a 
general cred itor of th e governm ent in an  am ount equal to th e fair market value of th e deferred  accoun t for each 
participan t. 

h is the opinion of the Schoo l System's management that the government has no liability for losses under the 
plan  but does have the duty of due care that would be  req uired  of an  ordinary prudent investor. The Schoo l 
System believes that it is unlikely that it will use the as sets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the 
fu ture. As indicated in Note 1, the Internal Revenue Code Section 457 has been am en ded  and th e Schoo l 
System's plan will be changed to clarify that all assets of this plan wi ll be held in trust for the exclusive 
benefit of the participan ts an d th eir be neficiaries. 

Investm ents are managed  by th e plan 's tru stee under one of six investment options , or a combination th ereof 
The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants. 
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(Continued) 

11. COM M ITM ENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Claims and Judgments - The insurance companies which insured the School System for workers' 
co mpensation and bus driver accidents during the tw o years ended December 31, 1981 an d for general 
liability an d automobile/bus driver accidents during the tw o years en ded  April 30, 1992 subsequently went 
bankrupt. As a result, the School System became liable for th e outstanding claims which were be ing paid by 

the insurance companies on behalf of the School System. Total outstanding claims an d judgments, including 
th e claims discussed above, approximated $517,600 at June 30, 1998, $320,000 of which is reported in the 
General Long-Term Debt Acco unt Group and $197,600 of which is reported in th e General Fund. 

Changes in the claims payable liability for the years ended  June 30, 1998 an d 1997 were as follows 

1998 1997 

Claim s payable, beginning of yea r 

Add: Changes in estimates 
Deduct: Claims  payments 

Claim s payable, end of yea r 

$ 492,600 $ 495,000 

25,000 (2,400) 

Workers' Compensation Claims - Effective M ay 1, 1989, th e School System adopted  a self-insured workers' 
co mpensation plan  adm inistered  by a service agent. Under th e plan, th e Schoo l System is self-insured for 
each individual claim  during a calendar year up to $200,000 with co mmercial insurance  for claims in excess 
of that amount. The School System has determined , through an  analysis of historical experience , the 
ad equacy of the liability necessary to co ver all losses an d claims, both incurred  an d reported and incurred but 
not reported (IBNR), under its workers' co mpensation program. The liability is recorded in the General Fund 
at June 30, 1998. 

Changes in the workers' co mpensation claims payable liability for the yea rs ended  June 30, 1998 an d 1997 
were as follows: ' 

1998 1997 

W orkers' co mpensation claims payable, beginning ofyca r $ 834,497 $ 739,757 

Add: Claims an d changes in estima tes 
Ded uct: Claims paym ents 

W orkers' co mpensation claims payable, end of yea r 

1,026,853 (1,021,169) 1,092,528 
. (997,788) 

$ 840,181 $ 834,497 

Other Risk M anagement - Th e Schoo l System co ntinues to carry co mm ercial insurance  for al l other risks of 
loss, including general liability, automobile, and employee health insuran ce. There have been no significant 
changes in th ese insurance  coverag e am oun ts . Settled claims  resulting fiom th ese risks have not exceeded  
insuran ce coverag e in any of the past three fiscal yea rs. 
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(Continued) 

Federal and State Programs - M inim um foundation funding received from the State Departm ent of 
Education is based primarily upon hfformation conce rning student erLvollment at th e School System's schools 
which is c<~mpiled  by th e School System and supplied  to th e State Department of Educa tion. Fed eral funding 
for the Schoo l Lunch Program is bas ed primarily upon th e number and types of meals served an d on user 
charges as reported to the United States Departm ent of Agricultu re. Fed eral an d State funding received  
related to various gran t programs are based  upon periodic reports detailing reimbursable expenditures made in 
compliance with program guidelines to the grantor agencies. 

These program s axe govern ed  by various statutory rules and regu lations of th e grantors. Am ounts received  

and receivable under these various funding program s are subject to periodic audit an d adjustment by the 
funding agencies. 

12. RESERVATIONS AND DESIGNATIONS OF FUN D BALANCES 

Reservations of fund balan ces are established  to indicate that portion of the fund balan ce which is not 
appropriable for expe nditure or is legally segregated for a specific fu ture use. Designations of fund balan ces 
represent tentative plans for fitmncial resource utilization in a fu ture period. 

The natu re and purpose of the reserv es an d designations are as follows 

Reserved for Encumbrances - This reserve was established for outstanding purchase orders an d other 
co mmitm ents for unperformed  co ntracts for goods an d service s which th e Schoo l System intends to honor 

Reserved for Prepaid Items  - This reserve was established as an offset against the asset, prepaid items, 
beca use it does not co nstitu te an available spenda ble resource  of th e General Fund. 

Reserved far Debt Service - This reserve represents the amounts reserved for payment of principal and 
interest maturing in futu re years. 

Reserved for Specific Programs  - This reserve represents amounts set aside primarily for in-school 
suspension programs. 

Designated far CapitalAdditlons andlmprovements - The proceeds of various bond issues, a portion of the 
un dedica ted sales tax revenue designated by the Board, and th e interest earned on the investm ent thereof are 

designated for capital projects in the Sales Tax Fund of the Capital Projects Fund to the extent that such 
am ount has not been reserved  for encumbrance s. 
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(Continued) 

The reserv ed and unreserved components of fund balances at June 30, 1998, consist of the follovdng: 

Rese rv ed  for: 
Encumbrances 
Prepaid items 
Debt service  
Specific programs 

Total 

Unrese rved - designated  for: 
Capital additions and 
improvements 

~.~ ..'CS.c'.r V,~  - 
undesignated  

Genera! 
Fund 

$ 4,749,352 
2,055,201 

6.804.553 

4.344.139 

Spec~l 
Revenue 

$3,1381164 

Debt 
Service 

$36,991,900 

36.991.900 

~.*pa*l 

PloJe~s Total 

$19,960,505 $ 

1.059.142 

21.019.647 

25.541,741 

302.086 

24,709,857 
2,055,201 
36,991,900 
L059.142 

64.816.100 

7r784,389 

Total fund balance $11,148,692 $3,138,164 $36,991,900 $46,863,474 $ 98,142,230 

On the budgetary basis, the reserved and unreserved  components of the General Fund fund balance at June 30 
1998, consist of the following: 

Reserv ed for: 
Encumbrances 
Prepaid items 

Total 

Unreserved - undesignated  deficit 

Total fund balan ce  on budgetary bas is 

$4,749,352 
2.055.201 

6,804,553 

(405,213) 

The teachers of Jefferson Parish are unionized. In September 1997, th e Board and th e Jefferson Fed eration of 
Teachers (the Union) agreed to a new three year contract ending June 30, 2000. This co ntract ealls for future 
increases to teachers' salaries and benefits of approximately $9 million over a three ),ear period of which 
approximately $6.5 million were expe nded during fiscal 1998. In response to th e new teachers' contract

, th e Board 
also granted  non-bargaining unit employees a one-tim e 5% pay raise during fiscal yea r 1998 which resulted in 
increased payroll co sts of approxim ately $2.4 million. Projected increases in General Fun d revenues were not 
suPilcient to fund such salary adjustments an d, therefore, the voters approved in ]uly, 1998 a 4 mill prope rty tax to 
provide approximately $6 mi llion per yea r in additional funding for operation an d maintenan ce  expenditures. Any 
remaining deficiency in operating revenues after co llection of th e new property taxes wdll be absorbed by red ucing 
fund balan ces in the General Fund. 
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13. POSTEM PLOYM ENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 

In accordance with State statutes, the School System provides certain continuing health care benefits for 
its retired employees. Substantially all of the School System's employee s become eligible for these 
ben efits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School System. Currently, 3,141 
retirees are eligible to participate in these benefits. These benefits for retirees are provided through an 
insurance company whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the retirees and by the School System. 
During fiscal yea r 1998, th e Schoo l System co ntributed 71%  of th e total premium for hea lth care 
insuran ce provided to the retirees. Th e Schoo l System recognizes the cost of providing these be nefits (the 
School System's portion of premiums) as an expenditure on a pay-as-you-go basis when the monthly 
premi ums are due. The Schoo l System's net co st of providing all hea lth care benefits to the approximately 
5,764 active an d 2,003 retired  participating employee s amounted to $11,292,255 for 1998. For 1998, the 
School System's co st of premiums paid for retiree s totaled $5,204,100. 

14. COM PONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES 

Cash 

In accordance with Louisiana statutes, th e Schoo l System maintains deposits at th ose depository banks 
authorized by th e Schoo l Board. All such depositories are members of the Federal Reserve System. 

Louisiana statu tes require th at all Schoo l System deposits be protected  by insurance or co llateral. The 
market value of co llateral pled ged must eq ual 100%  of th e deposits not covered by insurance. 

Bank balances of $331,459 at June 30, 1998 were insured  or eollateralized by securities held by the 
School System or its agent in the Schoo l System's nam e. 

General Fixed Assets 

A sumnmry  of changes in general fixed  assets follows 

Land andimprovements 
Equipment 

Tota l 

Other Revenues 

Balance 
July 1, 1997 Additions Deletions 

$ 3,290 
_ 927154 

$28,330 
31~464 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 1998 

$ 31,620 
123~618 

Other revenues of $446,310 included  on the combined  Statement of Revenues, Expenditu res and Changes 
in Fund Balance p~ narily represent donations from th e co mmunity. 
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15. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTM ENT 

The beginning balance of the General Fixed Asset Account Group has been red uced by $4,065,880. This 
decrease represents items capitalized prior to June 30, 1997, that were under $300 individually, the 
capitalization threshold at that time. The threshold was revised upward in fiscal 1998. During 1998, the 
School System removed  these items from the General Fixed  Asset Account Group. 
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GENERAL FUND 

General Fund is the principal operating fund of th e School System and receives most of th e revenues 

derived by the School System from local (principally property and sales taxes) and State sources. General 
Fund expenditures represent th e costs of general Schoo l System operations and include functional categories 
of instruction, supporting services and non-instruction. The General Fund is used  to account for all 
financial resources an d expenditures except th ose required  to be accounted  for in an other fund. 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULE F-I 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)AND ACTUAL 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1998 

REVENUES: 
Local sources: 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Tuition and oth er 
Interest income 
Other 
State sources 
Federal sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction 
Supporting services 
N on-instruction 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVE N UES OVE R 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Tran sfers to com ponent unit. 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 14,789,821 
106,551,111 

699,963 
1,021,414 
3,139,056 

132,677,935 
944.613 

259.823.913 

175,045,515 
87,636,083 

11.875 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 14,833,273 
106,032,051 

837,000 
900,000 

3,376,818 
133,173,044 

800.000 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (43,452) 
519,060 
(137,037) 
121,414 
(237,762) 
(495,109) 
]44.6]3 

. 259~952,186 (128,273) 

173,320,890 
88,129,329 

~ 
51,535 

(1,724,625) 
493,246 
39.660 

262~693,473 261~501~754 (1~191,719) 

(2,869~560) (1,549,568) (1,319,992) 

80,766 
(3,476,132) 
(450,000) 

(3,410,394) 
80,766 
(65,738) 
(450,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) - net (3,845,366) _ (3,410,394) (434,972) 

DEFICIEN CY OF RE VENUES AN D 
OTH ER FIN AN CIN G SOURCES OVER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES 

ENCUM BRAN CES OUTSTAN DIN G 
AT YEAR END 

PRIOR YEAR  ENCUM BRAN CES 
EXPENDED ]N CURRENT YE AR 

(~714,926) (4,959,962) (1,754,964) 

4,749,352 4,749,352 

(2,150,264) (2,150,264) 

FUND BALAN CE AT BEGINNIN G OF YEAR - 
GAAP BASIS 15,264,530 16,117,032 (852,502) 

FUND BALAN CE AT END OF YEAR - 
GAAP BASIS 

- 
36 $ 11.148.692 $ 13.756.158 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULEF-2 

GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1998 

]~)cal sources; 
Property taxes: 
Constitutional 
Special maintenance 
Sheriff's contribution to teachers' retirement 
Sales and use 
Tuition and other 
Interest incom e 
Rent and royalties 
H ospitalization 
Other 

Tbtal 

State sources 
Equalization 
Revenue sharing 
Grants in aid 
Professional improvement program 
Transportation 

Total 

Federal sources: 
Recovery of indirect costs 
Restricted gran ts in aid: 
Oth er 

Total 

TOTAL REVENUES 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 4,342,917 
10,446,904 
1,466,048 

106,551,111 
699,963 

1,021,414 
286,770 
188,061 

1.198.177 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 4,356,533 
10,476,740 
1,501,818 

106,032,051 
837,000 
900,000 
100,000 

1,625,000 
150.000 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (13,616) 
(29,836) 
(35,770) 
519,060 
(137,037) 
121,414 
186,770 

(1,436,939) 
1.048.177 

126,201~365 125~979,142 222~223 

125,495,680 
2,064,613 
917,501 

2,712,354 
1.487.787 

577,800 

366.813 

944.613 

$259.823.913 

- 37- 

125,816,516 
1,893,000 
949,123 

2,957,405 
1,557,000 

133.173.044 

525,000 

275.000 

800.000 

(320,836) 
171,613 
(31,622) 
(245,051) 
(69,213) 

, 095:09) 

52,800 

91.813 

144.613 

$259r952r186 $ (128~273) 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHOO L SYSTEM 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

SCHEDULE F~ 
Page t of 3 

INSTRUCTION: 
Regular Programs: 
Salaries and be nefita 
M aterials and supplies 
Equipment 
Other 

Special Programs: 
Salaries and benelits 
M aterials and supplies 
Equipmen t 
Other 

Total 

Vocational Programs: 
Salaries and benefits 
M aterials an d supplies 
Other 

Total 

Other Instructional Program s 
Salaries an d benefits 
M aterials and supplies 
Other 

Total 

Adult Continuing Education 
Progr am : 
Salaries an d benefits 

Total 

Total Instruction 

SUPPORTING SERVICES 
For Studen ts: 
Salaries and benefits 
M aterials and supplies 
Equipment 
Other 

For Instructional Staff: 
Salaries and benefits 
M aterials and supplies 
Equipment 
Other 

Total 

- 38- 

A~ ual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$100,544,518 
7AM ,012 
232,988 
lr120t990 

1q%3~2,5o8 

56,271p88 
430,381 
16,052 
78r735 

Revised 
Budget 

$102,450,692 
6,06g,23] 
348,263 

_  L230,351 

53,991,651 
186,009 
25,958 
79~925 

5,334,444 

223 

5,248,371 
81,995 
1.000 

5,334p667 5~331,366 

3,546,104 
26,639 
1,597 

3,559,894 
35,877 
2.087 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 1,906,174 
(1,365,781) 
115,275 
109 361 

765 029 

(2,279,637) 
(244,372) 

9,906 
1.190 

(2,5121913) 

(86,073) 
81,995 
777 

(3,301) 

13,790 
9,238 
490 

3,574,340 3,597,858 23,518 

7,544 

7.544 

9,628,320 
1,592 
34,947 
78,062 

9342.921 

3,998,357 
389,566 
25,319 

--  97~52 

10,586 

173,320,890 

9,369,392 
17,000 
84,947 
80,350 

3.042 

3~042 

(1,724 6_~  

(258,928) 
15,408 
50,000 
2288 

9,551,689 (191~232) 

4214,195 
572A61 
32,160 
127,996 

4,510,494 
--  

4,946!812 

215,838 
182,895 
6,841 
30.744 

436.31g 

(Continued) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 

GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

SCHEDULE F-3 
Page 2 of 3 

SUPPORTING SERVICES - continued 
Gen eral Administration: 
Salaries and benefits 
/vlaterials and supplies 
Tax collection fees 
Ol/~er 

School Administration: 
Salaries and benefits 
M aterials and supplies 
Other 

Total 

Business Service s: 
Salaries an d be nefits 
M aterials and supplies 
Equipment 
O/her 

Total 

Operations M aintenance 
Services: 
Salaries m3d ben efits 
M aterials and supplies 
Equipment 
Utilities 
Other 

Total 

Pupil Transportation 
Service s: 
Salaries an d benefits 
Ma terials an d supplies 
Eq uipment 
Other 

Central Activity Services: 
Sa laries and benefits 
Ma terials an d supplies 
Eq uipment 
Other 

Total 

Total Supporting Service s 

- 39 - 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 1,225,802 
47,430 

10,795,653 

._
11~567~900 

._
1
_
13

p636pT85 

18,684,976 
47,928 

--  
991~376 

1,700,480 
91,546 
61,069 
898,430 

2,751,525 

9,009,566 
1,416,478 
37,926 

5,241,277 
4,397~157 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 1,188,445 
60,996 

10,145,770 

~ 
2r541~880 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable 

$ (37,357) 
13,566 

(649,883) 
. 

973~980 

18,o68,636 
49,364 

1.099.309 

(616,340) 
1,436 

. 
107t933 

. 19,217,309 (506,971) 

1,846,073 
113,964 
95,910 

. . 94~920 

145,593 
22,418 
34,841 
49,490 

8,962,528 
],436,751 
40,117 

5,033,899 
4,136~721 

(47,038) 
20,273 
2,191 

(207,378) 
(260~36) 

2
...._
0,102,404 . 19,610,016 (492r388) 

13,065,663 
9,857 
24,750 

._ !1~84,889 

14
13851159 

1,842~19 
69:76 
207,956 
662,864 

__ .
22
,782,515 

87,636~083 

13,422,028 
11,500 
32,404 

~ 1,298,548 

1,999,822 
74,982 
261,723 

. ,. 
761r538 

356,365 
1,643 
7,654 

~ 13,659 

379,321 

157,603 
5,506 
53,767 
98.674 

~ 315r550 

88,129~329 493,246 

(Continued) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 

GENERAL fU ND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. t998 

SCHEDULE F~ 
Page 3 of 3 

NON-INSTRUCTION 
Community Services: 
Salaries and benefits 
Other 

To~l 

To~lnon-instrucfion 

TOTAL INSTRUCTION, SUPPORTING 
SERVICES AND NON-IN STRUCTION 

- 40 - 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Baslll 

2,376 
9A99 

11,875 

11,875 

$262,693A73 

Revised 
Budget 

1,091 
50.444 

51,535 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(1~85) 
4o,945 

39.660 

39.660 

(Concluded) 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for funds received from the other governm ental agencies that are 
legally restricted  to expenditure for specified  purposes. These funds also accoun t for rec eipt and expenditure of 
resources transferred  from th e General Fund when th ese funds are inadequate to finance  th e spec ified activities. 
Activities included within th ese funds are as follows: 

ESEA (Title I) (1) 
ESEA (Title ]If) (2) 
ESEA (T itle VII) (3) 
IDEA Part B (4) 
Vocational Education (5) 
Yrva (6) 
EESA Title 11 (7) 
Indian F~zhication Act (8) 
Drug Free Schools and Communities (9) 
Emergency Immigration Act (1 O) 
Title XIX - Schoo l Nurse (11) 
Child Care and Developmem Block Grant (12) 
Adult l~khication (13) 
Community Ed ucation (14) 
State Programs (15) 

(1) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for educationally disadvantaged 
children (T itle I), children of migrant ag riculture workers, an d for the improvement of student 
achievement and quality of education (T itle 2), 

(2) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for development an d 
implementation of comprehens ive reform plans to im prove th e teachings an d learning of all children 

(Project Goals 2000) and to support the development and implementation of systematic technology 
plans (Technology Literary Challenge). 

(3) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for carrying out bilingual 
education (Project S.T.A.R.). 

(4) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for children wi th disabilities 
under P.L. 101-476. 

(5) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for purposes of vocational 
ed uca tion, guidance, an d couns eling. 

(6) Used to account for funds allocated to programs for providing job training an d related assistance to 
economica lly disad van taged individuals an d oth ers who face significant employment barriers. 

(7) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs for improving the skills of 
teachers an d instru ction in math ematics, science , foreign lan guages an d co mputer science . 

(8) Used to account on a project basis for funds allocated to programs design ed to meet the special 
ed uca tiona l or culturally related academic needs of Indian  childr en. 

- 41 - 



(9) Used to account on a project basis for funds granted by P.L. 99-570 to help implement drug and 
alcohol abuse prevention and education programs. 

(1 O) Used to accoun t on a project basis for funds granted by P.L. 98-511 for programs for immigrant 
children enrolled  in elementary and secondary schools. 

(11) Used to accoun t on a project basis for funds allocated to providing schoo ls with nurses 

(12) Used to accoun t for assistance to low-income families wi th child care services 

(13) Used to account for continuing education programs designed to assist adults in obtaining their high 
school diploma equivalency. 

(14) Used to acco unt for a wi de variety of informal leisure learning classes and activities for Jefferson 
Parish residents. 

(15) Used to accoun t for miscellan eous State grant programs 

- 42 - 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SC HO O L SYSTEM 

SPECIAL REVENUE FU NDS 
CO MBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30. 1998 

Federal Program s 

and Secondary 
Education 
Act of 1965 
(Title I) 

ASSETS 

Cash and investm ents 

Accounts receivable 

Due from other funds $ 101,722 

D ue from other governm ental units 2~570~705 

TOTAL ASSETS $2r672,427 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALA NCE 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable $ 207 

Due to other fu nds 

Due to other governmental units 

Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND BAL AN CE 
Unreserved : 
Undesignated 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 
AN D FUN D BAL AN CE 

and Secondary  
Education 
Act of 1965 
(Title III) 

$ 278 

2151344 

$215~622 

and Secondary  
Education 
Act of 1965 
(Title VII) 

$27,159 

14 

. 
72~643 

$99
.~816 

2,664,551 $211,108 $99,816 

4,514 

7.669 

2~672~42
_
7 215~622 99,816 

~ 43 - 



SCHEDULE F-4 
Page 1 of 2 

IndivicluaI$ 
with Disabilities 

Education 
Act of 1990- Vocational 

Part B Education 

$ 15,862 

737~161 

$ 753,023 

$ 197 

96,169 

96~975
_  

$193,341 

$ 753,023 $191,518 

1.823 

753,023 193,341 

Job 
Training 

Partnership 
Act 

6 

11,154 

36~950 

$48~110 

$ 47,052 

540 

518 

48~110 

Education 
for Econom ic 
Security Act 

Title II 

$ 9,808 

165~012 

$174~820 

$173,462 

1,358 

174~820 

- 44 - 

(Continued) 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
CO MBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30. 1998 

ASSETS 

Cash and investm ents 

Accounts receivable 

Due from other funds 

D ue from other governm ental units 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 

Due to other fu nds 

Due to other governm ental units 

Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 
Unreserved: 
Undesignated 

TOTAL LIABILTYIES 
AND FUND BALAN CE 

Federal Program s 

- 45 - 

Drug Free 
Indian Schools Em ergency 

Education and Im m igration 
Act Com m unities Act 

$ 9~234 

$ 9,234 

$ 12,173 

728,532 

$ 54,520 

$ 9,159 $7391256 $40,884 

75 

9~234 

1~449 

7401705 

13,636 

541520 



SCHEDULE F-4 
Page 2 of 2 

Child Care and 
Title XIX Developm ent Adult Com m unity State 

School Nurse Block G rant Education Education Program s Total 

$ 11,661 

25,783 $ !29,830 

$129,830 

$220,577 $2,025,547 $2,829,844 $ 5,169,314 

153,584 

55 

471,407 

911,273 

625,188 

1,158,508 

3.413.467 8.201.636 

$374,161 $2rO25r602 $7~625,991 $15,154~646 

$ 30,528 $ 30,735 

$ 35,673 $'129,830 $ 97,127 $ 834,319 5,927,327 11,9M ,105 

60 5,114 

~ 
35~673 129~830 

. 
97,127 

, 
834~319 5r957,915 

1,771 
_ 
277,034

_  

26,528 

12.016.482 

1.191.283 1.668.076 3.138.164 

$374,161 $2,025~602 $7,625,991 

- 46 - 

$15,154,646 

(Concluded) 



JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. t998 

REVENUES: 
Federal sourc~cs 
State source s 
Tuition and other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES (All current) 
Instruction: 
Salaries an d benefits 
Supplies 
Other 

~ Total instruction 

Supporting services: 
Salaries and be nefits 
Supplies 
Other 
Total supporting se~,ices 

Non-instruction: 
Community services: 
Salaries and benefits 
Supplies 
Other 
Total community services 

Other 
Total non-instruction 

Total CXlX:nditures 

Federal 

and Secondary  
Educt ion 
Act of 1965 
(Titlel) 

and Secondary 
Education 
Act of 1965 
(Title III) 

Elem entary  
and Secondary 
Education 
Act of 1966 
(Title VII) 

$11,872,434 $391,153 $281,134 

103 

11~872,537 391,153 281~134 

5,656,356 
716,267 

1,265,373 

7.637.996 

2,467,611 
332,451 
651.912 

3.451.974 

391,747 
12,569 

__  
18,252 
422,568 
374.066 
796.634 

11.886.604 

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY)OFREVENUES 
OVER EXP END/TURES 

_  (14,067) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Opera ting transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) - net 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER FINAN CING SOURCES 
OVER EXPI'.'ND ITLTRES AND OTHER 
FIN ANCIN G USES 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALAN CES AT END  OF YEAR 

14,067 

14.067 

- 47 - 

2,942 
15,690 

_  
18,632 

197,609 
9,387 

157,807 
364,803 

7,762 

7r762 

391r197 

_ . (44) 

44 

$ 

164,717 
28,415 
19,822 

212,954 

9,552 
1,651 
7,760 
18,963 

39,675 

337 
40,012 
9,205 

49,217 

281,134 

$ 



SCHEDULE F-5 

Page 1 of 2 

Proaram s 
Individuals 

w ith Disabilities 
Education 
Act of t990- Vocational 

Part B Education 

Job 
Training 

Partnership 
Act 

$3,406,296 $390,060 $244,979 

3.406.296 

431,003 
456,281 
839~091 

1,726~375 

1,514,423 
10,295 
60,385 

1.585.103 

95,715 
95,715 

3A07.193 

(897) 

27,673 
37,181 
163,717 

228,57[ 

144.976 

15~880 
160~856 

633 

633 

185,244 

1,76Z 
187,011 

43,520 
7,613 
13,243 
64,376 

Education 
for Econom ic 
Security Act 

Title II 

$386,123 
1,582 

387,705 

1,676 
58,282 
27,325 
87,283 

228,999 
646 

57,892 
287,53

__
7 

12,885 

12.885 

390~060 251,387 387,705 

633 

ff33) 

- 48 - 

(6,408) 

6,408 

6,408 

$ $ 

(Continued) 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHOO L SYSTEM 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COM BINING STATEM ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES lN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,1998 

REVENUES: 
Federal sources 
State sources 
Tuition and other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES (All cunrenl) 
Instruction: 
Salaries arid benefits 
Supplies 
Other 
Total inst~ ction 

Supporting services: 
Salaries and benefits 
Supplies 
Other 
Total suppo rting sen,ices 

Non-instruction: 
Communily scnice s: 
Salaries and benefits 
Supplies 
Other 
Total com m unity se rvices 

Other 
Total non-instruction 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVE R EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Opo rating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) - net 

EXCESS (DEH CIENCY) OF REVE NUES 
AND  OT~IE R FIN ANCIN G SOURCES 
OVER EXPEND ITURES AND OTHER 
FIN AN CING USES 

FUND BALAN CES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALAN CES AT END OF YE AR 

Federal 

Indian 
Education 

Act 

Drug Free 
Schools 

and 
Com m unities 

Em ergency 
Im m igration 

Act 

$ 27,326 $1,726,977 $134,576 

137 

- 49- 

27,326 1,727,114 134,576 

20,016 
1,266 
3.467 
24.749 

193 
2.384 
2.577 

27.326 

19,674 
501,005 
1.096 

521.775 

915,052 
4,137 

195,957 
1A 15.146 

6,380 
14,217 
12,529 

_ _ _
33,126 

51,668 
4,475 

56~143 

29,441 41,494 

29,441 
60.752 

90.193 

41,484 
3,823 

45r307 

1,727,114 134~576 

$ 



SCHEDULE F-5 

Page 2 of 2 

Proaram s 

Title XlX 
School Nurse 

Child Care 
and 

Developm ent 
Block G rant 

$ 151,584 $ 41g,613 

151~584 

]66,678 
5,707 
24,514 
196~899 

~ 899_ 

_ _ _~ 31D 

(80,76~  

(126,081) 

12728
_
52

_  

Adult 
Education 

$ 386,311 
498,104 
117,202 

Com m unity 
Education 

$2,894,545 

State 
Program s Total 

$ 198,768 
6,528,294 
428,301 

418,613 1,00
..
1 6z

.
~l7 2,894,545. 7,155,363 

373,767 
22,065 
16~670 
412,502 

6,111 

478,586 
53,356 
54,474 
586,416 

307,830 
13,919 
9,205 

330,954 

120,135 
611,640 

731~775 

183,280 
22,066 
62,345 
267~691 

1,672,768 
1,771 
62,134 

1,736,673 

834,163 
1,812,829 
2,769,679 
5,416,671 

1,624,349 
23,594 
257,138 

1,905r081 

9,600 

9,600 
854 

1,736 6z~73 10,454 

$20,016,334 
7,026,398 
3.441.870 

30.484.602 

8,489,010 
4,334,201 
5,199~524 

18~022~735 

7~94,980 
430,427 

1.491.908 

9.617,315 

2,184,715 
14,340 
80.723 

2,279,778 
565.695 

2.845.473 

_  

418,613 917 3z~70 2,736,139 7,332,206 .330,485,523 

84,24
_ _
~7 ~ 158,406 (176,843) (921) 

84,247 

19
_
2 7
.2~87 

$ 277,034 
- 50- 

600,017 

600,017 

622,066 
(81,399) 

540.667 

158,406 423,174 539,746 

L  

1,032~877 1 ,244,902 2 598 418 

$1,6681076 $ 3,138,164 

(Concluded) 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULE F-6 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SCHEDULE O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL - ADULT EDUCATION FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

REVENUES: 
Federal sources 
State source s 
Tuition and other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction 
Supporting 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF RE VE NUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$ 386,311 
498,104 
117.202 

1.001.617 

586,416 
330~954 

917~370 

Revised 
Budget 

$ 450,000 
452,898 
128.000 

1.030.898 

714,538 
312.423 

1.026.961 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (63,689) 
,15,206 

(10,798) 

(29,281) 

128,122 

(18,531) 

109,591 

84,247 3,937 80,310 

FUND BALAN CE AT BEGINNIN G 
OFYEAR 192,787 

FUND BALAN CE AT END 
OF YEAR 

192.787 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULE Fo7 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL - COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

REVENUES: 
Tuition and other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURE S 
Instruction 
Supporting 
N on-instru ction 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF RE VENUE S OVER 
EXPENDITURES 

FUN D BALANCE AT BEGINNIN G 
OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE AT F.ND 
OF YEAR 

Actual on 
Budgetary 
Basis 

$2~894~545 

2~894,545 

731,775 
267,691 

1.736.673 

Revised 
Budget 

$2.626.000 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 268,545 

2,626~000 268~545 

759,109 
237,000 

1.629.891 

27,334 
(30,691) 
(106~782) 

2,736~139 2,626~000 (1101139) 

158,406 

1.032.877 1,032,877
. 

158,406 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

D ebt Service Funds are used to account for the accum ulation of resources for, and th e 
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and relategt costs. The School System 
maintains the following Debt Service Fun ds: 

Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking Fund  is used  to accum ulate the proceeds of ad valorem 
taxes which are specifically ded icated for debt service . 

1954 J/2~ and 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond  Sinking Fund s are used  to accumulate that 
portion of the 1954 an d 1980 sales an d use tax required  to meet th e debt service 
req uirements. M onthly deposits out of the proceeds of th e sales an d use tax are req uired to 
be made into these funds in an  am ount which will equal 1/6 of the interest failing due on 
the next interest pa~,anent date an d 1/12 of the principal falling due on th e next principal 
paym ent date. 

1954 1/2~ at~ J980 1/4~ Sales Tax  Bond Reserve Fund s are used  to accumulate that 
portion of the 1954 an d 1980 sales an d use tax which is set aside for the purpose of paying 
principal and interest on bonds payable. M onthly deposits of sales an d use tax proceeds 
are required  to be made into th ese funds until the required  reserve has been established . 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO OL SYSTEM 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
CO MBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 1998 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 

Interest receivable 

Property tax receivable 

Due from odaer funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALAN CE: 
Reserved for debt service 

TOTAL  LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALAN CE 

Ad Valorem  
Tax Bond 
Sinking 

$2,318,258 

137 

11,926 

t954 112~ 
Sales Tax 

Bond Sinking 

1954 112~ 
Sales Tax 

Bond Reserve 

$1,834,996 $15,925,059 

110,191 

4~366~467 

$ 2~330,321 

$ 12,067 

15.307 $ 791.817 

27,374 

6.174.089 

791.817 

15,243,433 
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SCHEDULE F-8 

1980 114~ 1980 1/4~ 
Sales Tax Sales Tax 

Bond Sinking Bond Reserve Tota 

$2,009,809 $9,164,013 $31,252,135 

37,998 1,428 

2.494.524 

$4,542,331 

$4,542,331 

149,754 

11,926 

6~860,991 

$ 463.715 

463.715 

$ 12,067 

L270~839 

1~282,906 

8.701.726 36.991.900 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

REVEN UES: 
Local sources: 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Interest income 

Totalrevenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current supporting services: 
M iscellaneous 
Assessor's office expenditures 
Pension fund co ntributions 

Total 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF 
REVE NL~;S OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Paym ent to refunded bond escrow agent 
Proceeds of refunding bonds 
Bond issuan ce  and other co sts 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) - net 

EXCESS (DEF/CIENCY) OF 
REVENUES AND OTHER 
FIN AN CING SOURCES 
OVER EXPENDITURES AN D 
OTHER FINANCIN G USES 

FUND BALAN CES AT 
BEGINNIN G OF YEAR 

FUND BAL ANCES AT 
END OF YEAR  

Ad Valorem 
Tax Bond 
Sinking 

$ 5,990,171 

157,253 

6.147.424 

7,752 
98,157 
176.946 

282,855 

3,955,000 
349.650 

4~587,505 

1954 112~ 
Sales Tax 

Bond Sinking 

1954 112~ 
Sales Tax 

Bond Reserve 

$ 11,000,000 
51.069 $ 813.156 

11.051.069 

27,309 

27,309 

7,325,000 
7.399.428 

14.751.737 

1,559,919 
_  (3,700,668.) 

1,559,919 

770.402 

$ 2~330r321 
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813.156 

813.156 

791,817 
(1,968,299) (791,817) 

_  (1,176,482) __  (791,817) 

(4,877,150) 21,339 

11.051.239 

$ 6.174.089 

15~222~094 



SCHEDULE F-9 

1980 114~ 
Sales Tax 

Bond Sinking 

1980 114~ 
Sales Tax 

Bond Reserve Total 

8,460,000 
55.464 453,973 

8.515.464 

3,548,851 
4.911.148 

8.459.999 

453.973 

$ 5,990,171 
19,460,000 
1.530.915 

26.981.086 

35,061 
98,157 
176.946 

310,164 

14,828,851 
12,660~226 

. 
27~799,241 

55,465 453~973 (818~155) 

9~6,199 

(20,076,067) 
20,467,484 
(391,417) 

(463,715) 
1,738,016 
(3,223,831) 
(20,076,067) 
20,467,484 
(391,417) 

946,199 (463,715) (1,485,815) 

1,001,664 (9,742) (2,303,970) 

31540,667 8.711.468 

$8,701,726 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

CapitalProjects Funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital 
facilities. The School System maintains the following Capital Projects Funds: 

Capital Fund is used to account for that portion of th e undedica ted  sales tax revenue which is 
designated  by the School Board annually for ca pital additions and improvements. 

Sales Tax Fund is used  to account for th e proceeds of the various 1954, 1980 and 1995 sales 
tax bonds  issued  from 1981 through 1995 and that portion of th e sales tax approved June 28, 

1980 (1/4 cent) for making capital im provements. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
CO MBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 1998 

SCHEDULE F-10 

ASSETS 

Cash ~ dinve~ nen~ 

Receivables: 
Accounts 
Interest 

Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 

Retainages payable 

Due to other fu nds 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALAN CE: 
Reserved for encumbrances 
Reserv ed  for specific program s 
Unreserved  - designated for 
capital additions and 

Total fu nd balan ce 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUN D BALAN CE 
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Capital Sales Tax Tota 

$6,164,086 $42,589,394 $48,753,480 

889 

2~000~000 

49,346 

6.819.090 

889 
49,346 

8.819.090 

$8,164,975 $49,457,830 $57,622,805 

$ 690,266 

2.739.465 

3.429.731 

$ 1,724,141 $ 1,724,141 

690,266 

5.605.459 8.344.924 

7~329~600 10~759~331 

1,647,078 18,313,427 
1,059,142 

1,726,938 
302~086 

4~735~244 

23,814,803 

42.128.230 

$8,164~975 $49,457,830 

19,960,505 
1,059,142 

25,541,741 
302.086 

46.863_474 

$57.622.805 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULE F-11 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALA NCES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

REVENUES: 
Local sources: 
Sales and use taxes 
Interest income 
Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Construction costs 
Architect fees 
Administrative and other 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF RE VE NUES 
OVE R EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINAN CIN G SOURCES 
(USES): 
Operating tran sfers in 
Operating tran sfers out 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) - net 

DEFICIENCY OF RE VENUES AND 
OTHER FIN AN CIN G SOUR CES 
OVE R EXPENDITURES AN D 
OTH ER FINAN CIN G USES 

FUND BALAN CES AT BEGINNIN G 
OF YEAR 

FUND BAL AN CES AT END 
OF YEAR 

Capital Sales Tax Total 

$ 3,000,000 
422,733 
142~254 

$ 234,562 
2,692,523 

18.746 

$ 3,234,562 
3,115,256 
161.000 

3p564~987 2~945~831 61510,818 

5,529,359 
850,932 

2.053.656 

8.433.947 

15,157,692 
1,464,132 
206.711 

20,687,051 
2,315,064 
2~260~367 

16~828,535 25~262~482 

(4,868~960) (13,882,704) ._(18,751,664) 

1,101,332 
(513~023) 

1,968,299 
(1~313,816) 

588.309 654.483 

3,069,631 
__ (11826,839) 

1,242,792 

(4,280,651) (13,228,221) (17,508,872) 

9.015.895 55.356A51 

$ 4,735r244 $ 42v128r230 
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64,372,346 

$ 46.863.474 



AGENCY FUND S 

Agency Funds are established to account for all monies held by the School System in an agcncy 
capacity. Expenditures are made only in accordance with th e purpose for which assets ar e 
received. Activities included within these funds ar e as  follows: 

School and Student Activity Funds (1) 
Schoo l Picture Fund (2) 
Stadium Fund (3) 
Schoo l System Event Fund (4) 
Deferred Compensation Fund (5) 

(l) Used to account for revenues and expenditures for individual schoo l purchases and student 
body activities, including m inor fund raising, field trips and special events. 

(2) Used to accoun t for security deposits received from school photographers 

(3) Used to account for funds generated for the operation of the Yenni, M emptsas and Bonnabel 
Stadiums. 

(4) Used to account for the receipts and disbursements of employee athletic events 

(5) Used to acco unt for receipts and disbursements of the deferred compensation plan created in 
aCcordance wi th Intern al Revenue Cod e Section 457. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULE F-12 
Page 1 of 2 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COMBINING S'I'ATEM ENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

Balance 
July t, 
1997 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
June 30, 
1998 

SCHOOL AND STUDENT ACTIVITY FUNDS 

ASSETS: 
Cash and invcsunents $3,396,793 $18,603,948 $18,290,003 $3,710,738 

LIABILITIES: 
D ue to student groups 
Due to schools 
D ue to others 

TOTAL 

SCHOOL PICTURE FUND 

A SSE'PS: 
Cash and investments 

LIAB IL ITIE S: 
D ue to photographers 
D ue to other funds 

TOTAL  

STADIUM FUND 

ASSETS: 
Cash and investm ents 

LIAB ILITIES: 
Due 1o stadium clubs 

SCHOOL SYS'I'EM EVENT FUND 

ASSETS: 
Cash and investm ents 

LIABILITIES: 
D ue to participants 

$1,540,472 
1,855,978 

$10,085,420 
8,508,111 

$10,017,626 
8,262,871 

$1,608,266 
2,101.218 

343 10.417 9.506 1.254 

$3,396,793 $18,603,948 $18,290,003 $3,710,738 

$ 43,371 

L704 

$ 1,704 
2,371 

$ 2,371 $ 42,704 
2,371 

$ 43,371 $ 4,075 $ 2,371 $ 45,075 

$ 86.077 

$ 86.077 

2.845 

$ 89,932 $ 21,572 

$ 89,932 $ 21.572 

$ 4,278 $ 5,013 

$ 6.446 $ 2,845 $ 4,278 $ 5,013 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM SCHEDULE F-12 
Page 2 of 2 

AG ENCY FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ~ ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

DEFERRED CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

ASSETS: 
Cash and investm ents 

Balance 
July 1, 
1997 Additions Deductions 

Balance 
June 30 
1998 

$21057,748 $ 2,108,304 $ 147,700 $4,018,352 

LIABILITIES: 
Due to employees/'or deferred compensation $2,057,748 $ 2,108,304 

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS 

ASSETS: 
Cash and investments 

L]AB]LTTIES: 
D ue to student groups 
D ue to schools 
Duc to othcrs 
Due 1o 
Due to 

photographcrs 
other funds 

D ue 1o stadium clubs 
Due 1o participants 
Due to employees for deferred  compensation 

TOTAL 

$ 147,700 

$5,529,785 $20,805,249 $18,534,284 $7,800,750 

$1,540,472 
1,855,978 

343 
43,371 

25,427 
6,446 

_ 82o57,748 

$10,085,420 
8,508,111 

10,417 
1,704 
2,371 
86,077 
2,845 

2,108~304 

$10,017,626 
8,262,871 

9,506 
2,371 

89,932 
4,278 

147.700 

$1,608,266 
2,101,218 

1.254 
42,704 
2,371 
21,572 
5.013 

4~018,352 

$5,529t785 $20r805,249 $18~534r284 $7,800,750 
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GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP 

General FixedAsset Account Group is used to account for fixed  assets used  in Governm ental 
Fund Type operations, rather than in governmental funds. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM SCHEDULE F-13 

G ENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP 
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 
JUNE 30, 1998 

FUNCTIO N AND ACTIVITY Land Buildings Equipm ent Tota 

INSTRUCTION 
Kindergarten 
Elementary 
M iddle 
H igh 

$ 61,760 
7,987,288 
4,345,790 
2.135.782 

$ 2,181,097 
98,450,865 
69,456,992 
59.634.380 

$ 672,885 
15,650,859 
6,369,432 
8~347fi16 

$ 2,915,742 
122,089,012 
80,172,214 
70.117.678 

Total instruction 14.530.620 229.723.334 31.040.692 275.294.646 

SUPPORTING SERVICES: 
Administration 1.085.389 

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED 
ASSETS 

6,936fi47 

$236.659.881 
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5.840.587 13.862.523 

$289.157.169 



 



OTH ER SUPPLEM ENTAL INFORM ATION 

The schedules within this subsection are presented as supplementary information to expand 
upon the data presented in the other subsections of the Financial Section. 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHOO L SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF INVES'I'MENTS - ALL FUNDS 

JUNE 30. 1998 

SCHEDULE FS-1 

Description 

U.S. Governm ent securities: 
U.S. Treasury Note Series S - 1998 
U.S. Treasury Note Series S - 1998 
D .S. Treasury Note Series I - 1999 
U .S. Treasury Bill 
U.S. Treasury Note Series Q - 1998 
U .S. Treasury Bill 
U .S. Treasury Bill 
U .S. Treasury Note Series J - 1992 
U.S. Treasury Note Series S - 1998 
U.S. Treasury Bill 
U.S. Treasury Bill 
U.S. Treasury  Bill 
U.S, Treasury Note Series S - 1998 
U .S. Trea sury Bill 
U.S. Treasury Bill 
U.S. Treasury Note Series R - 1999 
U.S. Treasury Note Series Q - 1998 
U.S. Treasury Note Series AB - 1999 

Investments in deferred compensation 
mutual funds and insurance 
contracts 

TOTAL 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
Adult Education 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS: 
Ad Valorem Tax Bond Sinking 
1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
1954 1/2~ Sales Tax  Bond Reserve 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND S 

Capital 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax 

AGENCY FUND S: 
Deferred Compensation Fund 

TOTAL 

- 68 - 

Date 
Acquired 

6/30/98 
6/30/98 
6/30/98 
2/20/98 
1112/98 
1112/98 
1/12/98 
6130198 
6/30/98 
6/30/98 
2120198 
6/30/98 
6/30/98 
4/30/98 
6/30198 
6104198 
2129/98 
6/30/98 

Interest 
Rate 

4.75 
4.75 
5.00 
N/A 
5.25 
N/A 
N/A 
5.00 
4.75 
N/A 
N/A 
N/A 
4.75 
N/A 
N/A 
4.75 
5.25 
5.875 

M aturity 
Date 

Carrying 
Value 

9130198 $ 6,000,372 
9/30/98 1,000,062 
1131/99 2,300,548 
7/02/98 1,833,633 
7/31/98 4,472,000 
7/09/98 4,346,778 
7102198 6,043,791 
1/31/99 1,002,345 
9/30/98 5,000,310 
7/16/98 2,000,037 
7/02/98 5,089,982 
8/06/98 6,029,359 
9/30/98 5,999,038 
7/02/98 5,040,992 
7/09198 10,022,137 
8/31/98 3,000,000 
7/31/98 2,000,000 
1/3 1/99 9~041~727 

80.223,111 

Various Various Various 4,018,352 

Share 
At Cost 

$ 1,000,062 

2,300,548 
1,833,633 
15,864,914 
2,000,000 

9r041f127 
31.040.822 

6,000,372 

42fl81,855 
48,182,227 

4.018.352 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING TRANSFERS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

SCHEDULE FS-2 

GENERAL FUN D 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
of 1965 (Title I) 
Elcm cntary  and Secondary Education Act 
of,1965 (Title Ill) 
Individuals with D isabilities 
Education Act of 1990 - Part B 
Vocational Ed ucation 
Job Training Partnership Act 
Title XIX School Nurse 
State Pra gram s 

Transfers To or From 

Elementary and Secondaxy Ed ucation 
Act of 1965 (Titlc ]) 

Elemcnta~ and Secondary Ed uca tion 
Act of 1965 (Title III) 
Individuals wi th Disa bilities 
Educa tion Act of 1990 - Part B 

Job Training Partnership Act 
Title XlX Schoo l Nurse 
State Program s 
Capital Fund 
School Lunch Enterprise Fund 

Total 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 
Vocational Education 
Gcncra] Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Ca pital Fund 

Total 

- 69 - 

O perating 
Transfers 

$ 80,766 

80,766 

14,067 

44 

897 
633 

6.408 

86,994 
513,023 

O perating 
Transfers 

O ut 

$ 14,067 

44 

897 
6.408 

86,994 
270,000 

3.097.722 

3.476.132 

633 

80.766 

622~066  
, 

g1~399 

(Contlnucd) 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE O F OPERATING TRA NSFERS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 1998 

SCHEDULE FS-2 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 

Transfers To or From 

Opera ting 
Transfers 

In 

1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 791,817 
Sales Tax  Fund 

1954 1/2~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 1954 1/2~ Sales Tax  Bond Sinking 

1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax  Bond Reserve 
Sales Tax  Fund 

1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Reserve 1980 1/4~ Sales Tax  Bond Sinking 

Total 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Fund 

Sales Tax Fund 

SCHOOL LUNCH ENTERPRISE FUND 

PRIM ARY GOVEPJ~M ENT/COM PONENT 
UNJT TRANSFERS 

General Fund 
State Program s 
Sales Tax  Fund 

1954 1/2~ Sales Tax  Bond Sinking 
1980 1/4~ Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Capital Fund 

Total 

General Fund 

Total 

463,715 
482,484 

Operating 
Transfers  

O ut 

1,968,299 

791.817 

463.715 

1,738,016 3,223,831 

270,000 
513,023 

831,332 

1,968,299 

3.069.631 

3.097.722 

3.097.722 

482,484 
831.332 

1.826.839 

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS $ 8,608,201 $ 8,608,201 

GENERAL FUND/PRIMARY GOVERNM ENT Component Unit 

COM PONENT UNIT 
The Jefferson Comm unity Charter School General Fund $ 450.000 

$ 450,000 

TOTAL COM PONE NT UNIT 
TRANSFERS  $ 450.000 $ 450.000 
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JEFFERSO N PA R ISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM  SCHEDULE FS-3 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998 

Board Mem ber 

Barry Bordelon 

Cedric Floyd 

O. H . Guidry 

Gene Katsa~fis 

M artin B. M arino 

Libby M oran 

Laurie Rolling 

Dr. Polly Thomas 

Robert W olfe 

TOTAL 

Num ber 
of Days 
Served 

365 

365 

365 

365 

365 

365 

365 

365 

365 
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Com pensation 

$ 9,60O 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

9,600 

lO,3OO 

10,100 

9,600 

9~600 

$ 87r600 
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JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

PRO PERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fisca 
Year 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

Total 
Tax Levy 

Current Tax 
Collections (1) 

$18,180,650 $17,135,070 

20,063,862 19,101,125 

19,428,288 17,921,491 

15,198,544 14,724,330 

17,475,550 16,596,850 

16,596,138 15,576,482 

16,980,867 15,876,457 

18,524,536 17,284,619 

19,089,340 17,849,204 

20,795,797 19,522,926 

Percent 
of Tax 

Collected 

94.25 

95.20 

92.24 

96.88 

94.97 

93.86 

93.50 

93.31 

93.50 

93.88 

NOTES: 

(1) The Jefferson Parish Sheriffs Office is the collecting agent for the School System. 

(2) includes interest and penalty collections and other judgments 

(3) Includes uncollected from the current year net of adjustrnents 

Source: Jefferson Parish Sherrifs Offi ce, Property Tax Rec onciliation Report 
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Prior Year 
Delinquent 

Tax Collections(2) 

$977 774 

606 599 

753 298 

811 417 

635 627 

696 202 

515 579 

393 314 

502,384 

280,008 



TABLE 3 

Total Cash 
Collections (2) 

$18,112,844 

]9,707,724 

18,674,789 

15,535,747 

17,232,477 

16,272,684 

16,392,086 

17,677,933 

18,351,588 

19,802,934 

Percent 
of Total 

Collections 
to Tax Levy 

99.63 

98.22 

96.12 

102.22 

98.61 

98.05 

96.53 

95.43 

96.14 

95.23 

O utstanding 
Delinquent 
Taxes (3) 

$1,081,749 

668,127 

823,853 

511,366 

664,738 

405,240 

381,791 

361,151 

336,837 

311,569 
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Percent of 
Delinquent 
Taxes 

to Tax Levy  

5.95 

3.33 

4.24 

3.36 

3.80 

2.44 

2.25 

1.95 

1.76 

1.50 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO OL SYSTEM 

ASSESSED TAXABLE VALUE BY TYPE OF PROPERTY  
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1) 

Fisca 
Year 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

Real Estate 

$1,468,876,201 

1,478,811,052 

1,410,410,590 

1,398,391,467 

1,414,993,100 

1,402,928,000 

1,440,022,891 

1,564,855,075 

1,595,029,436 

1,631,708,266 

Personal 

, Property 
Assessed %  

$288,367,266 

296,755,383 

308,355,889 

314,981,901 

322,595,835 

328,634,000 

364,135,874 

438,154,011 

472,388,103 

493,452,914 

Public Service 
Corporations 

Assessed ~ %  

$138,781,790 

137,260,870 

144,279,030 

150,233,440 

147,831,850 

150,954,000 

171,358,058 

154,277,510 

149,245,410 

145,438,910 

N OTE: 

(1) The assessed and taxable value for the School System is determined during the 
School System's fiscal year and is supplied  by tlae Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office. 
All land an d residential improvements are as sessed  at 10% of its fair market value an d 
other property at 15% of its rriarket value. Taxable valuation for tax levy purposes is 
net of adjustments identified subsequent to certification. 

Source: Jefferson Parish, Louisiana, Grand recapitulation of the as sessment roll 
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TABLE 4 

Total Hom estead 
es Exem pt Taxable Value 

$1,896,025,257 100 $649,066,923 $1,246,958,334 

1,912,827,305 100 655,693,498 1,257,133,807 

1,863,045,509 IO0 634,148,992 1,228,896,517 

1,863,606,808 ]00 637,170,252 1,226,436,556 

1,885,420,785 100 642,492,250 1,242,928,535 

1,882,516,000 

1,975,516,823 

2,157,286,596 

100 

100 

100 

648,005,000 1,234,511,000 

653,914,820 1,321,602,003 

700,028,120 1,457,258,476 

2,216,662,949 100 704,683,990 1,511,978,959 

2,270,600,090 100 709,415,760 1,561,184,330 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

PROPERLY TAX RATES - ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 5 

Fisca 
Year 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

Jeffem on PaHsh 
Public SchoolSvstem 

dalntenance 
and 

O peration 

0.57 

0.66 

0.83 

0.58 

0.68 

0.65 

0.66 

0.69 

0.62 

0.73 

Debt 
Service 

0.39 

0.39 

0.21 

0.24 

0.25 

0.24 

0.29 

0.31 

0.27 

0.30 

Total 

0.96 

1.05 

1.04 

0.82 

0.93 

0.89 

0.95 

1.00 

0.89 

1.03 

Source: Jefferson Parish, L ouisiana December 31, 1997 CAFR 
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Jefferson 
Parish 

1.31 

1.51 

1.21 

1.34 

1.38 

1.43 

1.39 

1.40 

1.26 

1.31 

Parish 
Other 

0.41 

0.41 

0.47 

0.65 

0.65 

0.64 

0.65 

0.65 

0.66 

0.69 

Tota 

2.68 

2.97 

2.72 

2.81 

2.96 

2.96 

2.99 

3.05 

2.81 

3.03 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

RATIO OF NET GENERA L BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE AND 
NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Debt Service Ratio of Net 
Fiscal Gross Bonded M onies Net Bonded Bonded Debt to 
Year Assessed Value Debt (2) Available (2) Debt . Assessed Value 

(In Thousands) 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

]994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

$1,896,025 $40,600,000 $2,515,406 $38,084,594 

1,912,827 36,788,000 4,127,131 32,660,869 

1,863,046 32,785,000 

1,863,607 28,575,000 

5,499,954 27,285,046 

2,918,031 25,656,969 

1,885,421 24,158,000 1,949,753 22,208,247 

],882,516 19,925,000 

1,975,517 15,500,000 

2,157,287 11,275,000 

2,216,663 6,795,000 

855,950 

195,948 

770,402 

19,069,050 

15,500,000 

11,079,052 

6,024,598 

2,270,600 2,840,000 2,287,773 552,227 

NOTE: 

(1) Estimates based on data from Louisiana Tech University, obtained from Jefferson Parish, 
Louisiana December 31, 1997 CAFR. 

(2) Includes only Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 
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2.01 

1.71 

1.46 

1.38 

1.18 

1.01 

0.78 

0.51 

0.27 

0.00 



TABLE 6 

Parish 
Population (1) 

468 509 

465 624 

448 306 

451 543 

456 389 

457 069 

457 481 

458,456 

455,741 

453,160 

Net Bonded 
Debt 

Per Capita 

$ 81 

70 

61 

57 

49 

42 

34 

24 

13 

1 

Assessed 
Valuation 
Per Capita 

$4,047 

4,108 

4,156 

4,127 

4,131 

4,119 

4,318 

4,706 

4,864 

5,011 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

CO MPUTATION O F LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 
JUNE 30, 1998 

TABLE 7 

1998 total appraised valuation for school 

lax purposes (1) 

Debt limit percentage 

Legal debt limit 

Total bonded  debt 

Less (plus) - Reserve (deficit) for retirement of 
bonded  debt 

Net bonded debt applicable to debt limit 

Le gal debt margin 

$ 2,840,000 

2,287,773 

N OTE: 

(l) The 1998 tax year appraised value is used for fiscal year 1998 tax purposes 
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$2,270,600,090 

10 % 

227,060,009 

552~227 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT (1} 
JUNE 30, 1998 

TABLE 8 

Jefferson Parish Public School 
System 

Jefferson Parish 

W est Jefferson Levee District 

City of Kenner 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Taxable assessed valuation 

Ratio of direct and overlapping 
debt to taxable as sessed  valuation 

Direct and overlapping debt per 
capita 

Percentage 
Net Applicable to 

Bonded Debt the System 

$ 552,227 

82,500,000 

1,420,000 

1.785.000 

System 
Share of Debt 

100 $ 

100 

100 

100 

N OTE: 

(1) Data for taxing entities other than Jefferson Parish Public School System were supplied 
by th e respective taxing entity. 
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552,227 

82,500,000 

1,420,000 

1.785.000 

$1,561,184,330 

5.53 %  

190 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT (2) 
TO TOTAL G FNERAL EXPENDITURES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 9 

Interest 
Fiscal and Fiscal 
Year Principal (2) Charges (2) 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

Ratio of 
Total Debt Service 

Total Debt General to General 
Service Expenditures (1) Expenditures 

$4,190,000 $2,311,689 $6,501,689 $219,196,227 

3,812,000 2,106,939 5,918,939 243,655,503 

4,003,000 1,910,005 5,913,005 249,961,641 

4,210,000 1,705,907 5,915,907 258,652,164 

4,417,000 1,493,974 5,910,974 264,549,683 

4,233,000 1,271,392 5,504,392 284,749,912 

4,425,000 1,050,699 5,475,699 375,919,095 

4,225,000 

4,480,000 

3,955,000 

823,865 

590,480 

349,650 

NOTE: 

(1) Per Table 1. 

(2) Includes only Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 

5,048,865 302,225,713 

5,070,480 308,424,857 

4,304,650 343,641,631 
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3.0 

2.4 

2.4 

2.3 

2.2 

1.9 

1.5 

1.7 

1.6 

1.3 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 10 

Fisca 
Year 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

Parish 

Population (1) 

468 509 

465 624 

448 306 

451 543 

456 389 

457 069 

457 481 

458,456 

455,741 

453,160 

Average Dally 
Membership (2) 

57,040 

56,591 

57,971 

61,593 

55,241 

57,638 

57,022 

52,008 

52,024 

52,032 

Average Daily 
Attendance (2) 

53,076 

52,482 

53,682 

56,195 

49,042 

53,489 

52,984 

48,960 

49,018 

49,128 

N OTES: 

(1) Estimates based on data from Louisiana Tech University, obtained from Jefferson 
Parish, Louisiana December 31, 1997 CAFR . 

(2) Source: State Annual Financial .and Statistical Report 
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Percent of 
Attendance 

93.1 

92.7 

92.6 

91.2 

88.8 

92.8 

92.9 

94.] 

94.2 

94.4 



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPO SITS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fisca 
Year 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993 

1994 

1995 

1996 

1997 

1998 

Assessed 
Property 
Value 

$1,896,025,257 

1,912,827,305 

1,863,045,509 

1,863,606,808 

1,885,420,785 

1,882,516,000 

1,975,516,823 

2,157,286,596 

2,216,662,949 

2,270,600,090 

Residential Construction 
~Ingle 
Fam ily 
Units Value 

500 

487 

409 

521 

593 

600 

600 

556 

494 

492 

$26,935,087 

27,647,498 

24,723,976 

31,427,031 

34,763,428 

35,803,000 

39,128,000 

35,644,000 

32,575,000 

30,847,000 

M Ulti 
Fam ily 
Units Value 

6 

30 

1 

0 

13 

160 

23 

348 

211 

24 

Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Offi ce, Finance  Departm ent, and Deparanent of 
Inspection an d Code Enforcement. 
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$ 162,356 

12,902,653 

10,440,516 

0 

755,284 

5,175,000 

9,080,000 

8,719,000 

7,206,000 

887,000 



TABLE 11 

Com m ercial 
Public Buildings 

and Other 
Construction 

Value 

Total 
Perm it 

Valuation 

Jefferson 
parish Bank 
Deposits 

$ 82,689,290 $109,786,733 $1,787,711,000 

91,729,239 

89,102,698 

132,279,390 1,803,591,000 

124,267,190 2,192,567,000 

]09,030,212 140,457,243 2,501,255,614 

68,586,076 104,104,788 2,692,906,803 

92,330,000 133,305,000 2,936,122,000 

118,262,000 166,470,000 3,316,570,000 

150,432,000 194,795,000 3,917,592,000 

118,833,000 158,614,000 3,925,036,000 

106,391,000 138,125,000 4,270,500,000 
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JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

TABLE 12 

Nam e of Taxpayer 

Entcrgy Servicx:s Inc. 

BellSouth 

First N ational tlank of Commerce 

Hibernia N ational Bank 

Louisiana Gas Service 

Avondale Shipyards, Inc. 

W himey Nationa l Bank 

Lakeside Shopping Center 

Lo uisiana CG SA Inc. 

Southwest Airlines Co. 

Type of Business 

Electric Utility 

Telephone Utility 

Financial Institution 

Financial Institution 

Gas Utility 

Shipbuilding 

Financial Institution 

Shopping M all 

Telecomm unications 

Ai rline 

Source: Jefferson Parish Assessor's Office  
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1997 
Assessed Percent of 
Valuation Total 
(Amounts in Assessed 
thousands) Valuation 

$ 57,734 

45,824 

16,136 

12,402 

12,170 

11,763 

8,874 

7,352 

7,322 

6.664 

2.60 % 

2.07 

.73 

.56 

.55 

.53 

.40 

.33 

.33 

.30 

8.40 %  



JEFFERSO N PA RISH PUBLIC SCHOO L SYSTEM 

MISCELLANFOUS INFORMATION 

TABLE 13 

CO MPARATIVE AVERA G E CO ST PER PUPIL: 

Year 

1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 

Total 

Expenditures(I) 

$219,196,227 
243,655,503 
249,961,641 
258,652,164 
264,549,683 
284,749,912 
305,844,095 (2) 
302,225,713 
308,424,857 
343,641,631 

Daily 
Mem bership 

57,040 
56,591 
57,971 
61,593 
55,241 
57,638 
57,022 
52,008 
52,024 
52,032 

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects. 
(2) Does not include $70,075,000 debt retired during fiscal 1995 on a refinancing which originated 

during fiscal 1992. 

STATISTICAL INFORMATION BASED ON AVERA G E DALLY M EMBERSHIP 

Average daily 
membership 
Cost per pupil 
State and federal funds 
Local fu nds received 
Tax levied 
Outstanding bonds 

Cost 
Per Pup 

$3,843 
4,306 
4,312 
4,199 
4,789 
4,940 
5,364 
5,811 
5,929 
6,604 

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 

52,032 
$ 6,604 
3,087 
3,135 
399 

2,846 

MISCELLANI-"OUS STATISTICS 

Schools: 
Senior H igh Schools 
Junior High Schools 
M iddle Schoo ls 
Elementary 
Kindergarten 
Special 
Career Center 

Staf~ 
Total employees 
Teachers 

52,024 
$ 5,929 

2,891 
3,019 
370 

3,214 
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52,008 
$ 5,811 

2,885 
3,151 
356 

3,480 

57,022 
$ 5,364 
2,690 
2,941 
298 

2,514 

9 
5 
11 
52 
3 
3 
1 

84 

7,325 
3,493 

57,638 
$ 4,940 
2,586 
2,600 
288 

5,114 
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D eloitte &  T ouche LLP R ebowe &  C ompany APC H anford M . H arrison, CPA 

701 Poydras Street 
Suite 3700 
New O rleans, Louisiana 70139 

(504) 581-2727 

3501 N. Causeway Boulevard 
Suite 810 
M etairie, Louisian a 70002 

(504) 837-0123 

1027 W hitney Avenue 
G retna, Louisiana 70056 
(504) 36S-2S01 

INDEPENDENT AUDITO RS' REPO RT ON CO MPLIANCE AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
W ITH GO VERNM ENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

M embers of the School Board of 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 

W e have audited the financial statements of Jefferson Parish Public School System as of and for th e year 
ended June 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated October 16, 1998. W e conducted our 
audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standa rds and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained  in Government Auditing Standards, issued  by the Comptroller General of the United  
States. 

C~ _ompliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jefferson Parish Public School System's 
financial statements arc free of material misstatement, we performed  tests of its compliance wi th certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, co ntracts an d gran ts, nonco mpliance with which co uld have a direct and 
material effect on th e determ ination of financial statement am ounts. However, providing an opinion on 

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Audittng Standards. 

ntem al Control Over Finan cial Renortin~ 

In planning an d perform ing our audit, we co nsidered  Jefferson Parish Public School System's internal 
co ntrol over financial reporting in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements an d not to provide as suran ce  on the internal control 
over financial reporting. Our cons ideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not 
necessarily disclose all ma tters in the internal control over financial repo rting that might be  ma terial 
weaknesses. A ma terial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the 
internal co ntrol compo nents does not red uce to a relatively low level th e risk that misstatements in 
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not 
be  detected  wi thin a timely period by employees in the normal course of perform ing their assigned  
functions. W e noted  no matters involving the internal co ntrol over financial reporting an d its operation 
that we co nsider to be material weaknesses. 



This report is intended solely for the information of the School Board, management, th e State of 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and officials of applicable federal an d state agencies. This restriction is 
not intended  to limit the di stribution of th is report, which is a matter of public record. 

October 16, 1998 
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R EBOW E & C OM PAN Y 
CEI~,TIFIED PU BLIC ACCO UN TAN TS 

CO N SU LTA N TS 
A PRO FESSIO NAL CO RPO RA]IO N 

3501 N. Causeway Blvd. ~ Suite 810 ~ P.O. Box 6952 , Metairie, LA 70009 
Phone (504) 837-9116 ~ Fax {504) 837-0123 ~ F-maiJ rebowe@rebowe.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COM PLIANCE W ITH RE QUIRE M ENTS 
APPLICALE TO EACH M A JO R PR O G R AM  AN D INTERNAL CO NTRO L O VER 

C OM PLIAN CE IN A CCO RDAN CE W ITH OM B CIR CULAR  A -133 

M em bers of the School Board 
Jefferson Parish, Louisiana 

W e have audited the com pliance of Jefferson Parish Public School System w ith the types of 

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Offi ce of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 1998. Jefferson Parish Public School System's major federal 
program s ar e identified in the accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ar ds. 
Com plian ce with the requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts an d grants applicable to each of 
its major federal programs is the responsibility of Jefferson Parish School System's man agement. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Jefferson Parish Public School System 's 
com plian ce based on our audit. 

W e conducted  our audit of complian ce in accordan ce with generally accepted auditing stan dards; 
the stan dard,~ applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; an d OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those stan dards an d OM B Circular A-133 
require th at w e plan  an d perform  the audit to obtain reasonable as suran ce about whether 
noncompliar~ce with the types of complian ce requirements referred  to above that could have a 
direct an d material effect on a major federal program  occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on 
a test basis, evidence about Jefferson Parish Public School System 's com plian ce w ith those 
requirem ents and perform ing such other procedures, as w e considered necessary in the 
circum stan ces. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable bas is for our opinion. Our audit 
does not provide a legal determ ination on Jefferson Parish Public School System 's com plian ce 
with those requirem ents. 

In our opinion, Jefferson Parish Public School System com plied, in all m aterial respects, w ith the 

requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal program s for the 
year ended June 30, 1998. 



Intern al Control over Com pliance 

The m anagem ent of Jefferson Parish Public School System is responsible for establishing and 
m aintaining effective intern al control over complian ce with requirem ents of laws, regulations, 
contracts an d grants applicable to federal progr am s. In planning an d perform ing our audit, we 
considered Jefferson Parish Public School System 's intern al control over compliance with 
requirements that could have a direct an d material effect on a major federal program in order to 
determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our  opinion on com pliance and 
to test an d report on intern al control over com plian ce in accordan ce with OM B Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of th e intem al control over co m plian ce w ould not necessarily disclose all 
m atters in the intern al control that m ight be m aterial w eaknesses. A m aterial w eakness is a 
condition in which th e design or operation of one or m ore of th e internal control com ponents 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk th at noncom pliance with applicable 
req uirem ents of law s, regulations, co ntracts and gr an ts that would be m aterial in relation to a 
major federal program  being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by 
employees in the norm al co urse of perform ing th eir assign ed functions. W e noted no m atters 
involving the intern al control over com plian ce an d its operation th at w e consider to be m aterial 
w eaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ar ds 

W e have audited the general-purpose f'm ancial statem ents of Jefferson Parish Public School 
System as of and for the year ended  June 30, 1998 an d have issued our  report thereon dated 
October 16, 1998. Our audit w as  perform ed  for the purpose of form ing an  opinion on the 
general-purpose finan cial statem ents taken as  a whole. The accom panying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Aw ar ds is presented  for purp oses of additional an alysis as  required by 
OM B Circular A-133 and is not a required  part of th e general-purpose finan cial statem ents. 
Such inform ation has been subjected  to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
general-purpose finan cial statem ents and, in our  opini on, is fairly stated, in all m aterial respects, 
in relation to the general-purpose finan cial statem ents tak en as  a whole. 

This report is intended for the inform ation of th e audit comm ittee, m an agem ent an d federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. H ow ever, this report is a m atter of public record 
and its distribution is not lim ited. 

October 16, 1998 
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JE FFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCH O O L SY STEM  
FO OTNOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES O F FEDERAL AW ARDS 

For the Year Ended  June 30, 1998 

NO TE 1 - SUM M A RY O F SIG NIFICANT A CCO UNTING PO LICIES 

Basic of Presentation 

The accom panying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepar ed on the 
accrual bas is of accounting. Grant revenues ar e recorded  for finan cial reporting purposes when 
th e School Board has  m et th e qualifications for the respective grants. Several progr am s are 
funded jointly by State of Louisian a appropriations an d fed eral funds. Cost incurred in program s 
partially funded by federal gran ts are applicable against federal gran t fu nds to the extent of 
revenue available w hen they properly apply to the gr an t. The inform ation in this schedule is 

presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Th erefore, some amounts presented in, or used in 
the preparation of, the general-purpose finan cial statem ents. 

Accru ed and D eferred Reim bursem ent 

Various reim bursem ent procedures are used for federal aw ar ds received by the School Board. 
Consequently, tim ing differences betw een expenditures and program  reim bursem ents can  exist at 
the beginning an d end of the year. A ccru ed balan ces at year -end represent an  excess of 
reim bursable expenditures over cas h reim bursem ents received. G enerally, accru ed balan ces 
caused by differences in the tim ing of cash reim bur sem ents an d expenditures w ill be reversed in 
the rem aining grant period. 



 

JE FFERSO N PAR ISH PUBLIC SCH O OL SYSTEM  
SUM M A RY O F AU DIT RESULTS AND STATUS O F PRIO R YEAR 'S FINDING S 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 

SUM M A RY O F AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report expresses an unqualified  opinion on th e general-purpose financial 
statem ents of the Jefferson Parish Pubh'c School System . 

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of th e financial statem ents of Jefferson Parish 
Public S~:hool System were noted during the audit. 

3. No instances of noncompliance m aterial to the financial statem ents of Jefferson Parish Public 
School System were noted during th e audit. 

4. No rep ortable conditions relating to the audit of the major fed eral award programs is reported in 
the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each M ajor 
Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OM B Circular A- 133. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Jefferson Parish 
Public School System expresses an un qualified opinion. 

6. No audit findings relative to the major federal award program s for Jefferson Parish Public 
School System, accordingly there is no Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cost. 

7. The programs tested as majorprograms include 

A . Elem entary and Secondary Education Act of 1965-Title I 
lq. Dep artm ent N ational School Lunch Progr am  

CFDA No. 84-010 
CFDA N o.l 0-553 

8. The threshold for di stinguishing betw een type A and type B progr am s was $1
,016,167 

9. Jefferson Parish Public School System w as  determ ined  to be a low-risk auditee 

STATUS O F PR IO R YEAR 'S FINDING S 

The School System has  taken corrective action on all findings from our prior year audit report 
dated October 17, 1997. 



D eloitte &  T ouche LLP R ebowe &  C om pany A PC H anford M . H arrison, CPA 

701 Poydras Street 350d N . Causeway Boulevard 
Suite 3700 Suiie810 "-~ i.~'" . . =9" 
New O rleans, Louisiana 70139 M etairie, Louisiana 7000"2 
(504) 581-2727 (504) 837-0123 

October 16, 1998 

Jefferson Parish School Board 
4600 River Road 
M arrero, Louisiana 70072 

Dear M embers of the Boa rd 

1027 W hitney Avenue 
Gretna, Louisiana 70056 
(5o4) 36s-2sol 

In p]anning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Jefferson Parish 
Public School System (Schoo l System) for the year ended June 30, 1998 (on which we have issued our 
report dated October 16, 1998), we developed the following recommendations concerning certain matters 
related to the Schoo l System's internal control and ce rtain observations an d recommenda tions on other 
accounting, adm inistrative and operating matters. A description of th e responsibility of management for 
establishing and ma inta ining internal control, and of the objectives of and inherent limitations of internal 
control, is set forth in th e attached  Appendix, an d should be read in conjunction with this letter. Our 
co mments are presented in Exhibit I an d are listed in the table of co ntents th ereto. 

This repo rt is intended for the information of the Schoo l Board
, management, thc State of Louisiana 

Legislative Auditor, an d officials of applicable fed eral an d State agencies
. This restriction is not 

intended to lim it the distribution of this repo rt, which is a matter of public record. 

Yours truly, 



JEFFERSO N PARISH PUBLIC SCHO O L SYSTEM 
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NG TTE 

FIX ED ASSETS 

Program Software 

The School System's fixed asset aceounting system does not adequately account for all as sets in the General 
Fixed Asset Account Group ("GFAAG"). 

Background 

The Schoo l System continues to use its internally developed  fixed asset ac co unting system which is not 
interfaced with th e general led ger accounting system and, th erefore, req uires extensive reconciliation. 

Recommendation 

W e recommended  in th e prior year that th e Schoo l System replace th e old fixed  as set ac counting system wi th a 
new acco untiag  system that is compatible with its general led ger system and that it raise its capitalization 
threshold policy. In 1997/1998, the Schoo l System raised  its ca pitaliza tion threshold to $300 but did not 
upgrade its accounting system . W e recomm end that it do so. 

Th e Jefferson Parish School System did in fact look at new software to handle th e property control process 
during fiscal year 1997/98. Unfortunately, we were not able to find a sottware package that m et our needs. 
W e have recently engaged  Lockheed, our external co ntracted  service  vendor for m ainfram e operations, to 
review the current property co ntrol process and to recomm end appropriate chan ges to align a new system wi th 
our genera/ledger system . This is an on-going process. In the meantime, an  outside co ntractor is modifying 
our current software to allow for cross reference  of equipment purchases an d th e General Fixed Asset Account 
Group led ger. Further, we are moving back to a more centralized system . Some yea rs ago we decentralized the 
system in th e belief that the school site co uld best handle additions and deletions. This process has proved to be 
over burdensome to th e few schoo l site clerical persons. However, we do believe th at th e current process 
allows for ad equate co ntrol of the as sets of the School System albeit a man ual labor intensive system. 

Charter School 

Observation 

Th e Jefferson Community Charter Schoo l has not established  a capitalization policy for its ca pital purchases 
W hile a fixed as set tracking system has been established, th e School is not following a capitalization po licy. 

Th e Cha rter School should ha ve a General Fixed  As set Account Group, similar to that of th e Schoo l System . It 
should also establish a ca pitaliza tion policy an d follow such policy for all property ad ditions. 



All purchases of equipment, no matter the cost, will be reviewed by the Jefferson Parish Accounting office. 
Those qualifying under the dollar limitation will be included in the General Fixed  Asset Account Group. Up to 
this point all purchases are being included. 

YEAR 2000 

Observation 

In our letter to you dated October 16, 1998, we informed you that (1) we made limited inquiries of management 
regarding their activities to address the year 2000, (2) our audit of Jefferson Parish Public School System's 
financial statements for the year ended  June 30, 1998, does not provide any assurances nor did we express any 
opinion, that th e School System's systems or any other systems, such as  th ose of Schoo l System's vendors, 
service providers or other third parties are year 2000 compliant, and (3) we are not engaged to perform , nor did 
we pe rform as part of our audit engag ement, an y procedures to lest whether the School System's systems or 
an y other systems are year 2000 co mpliant or whether the plans an d activities of the School System or an y 
other third parties are sufficient to address an d co rrect system or an y other problems that might arise because 
of the year 2000, nor wi ll we express any opinion or provide an y oth er assurance s wi th regard to these ma tters. 

Recom mendation 

The School System should Continue to diligently addr ess th e yea r 2000 problem 

Th e Jefferson Parish School System continues to aggressively attack th e Y2K situation. W e have purchased  
new hardware which is be ing run parallel with our old system . Th e new hardware should be on-line by Jan uary 
1999. W e ha ve also engag ed Lockheed to co nvert all pe rsonnel, payroll and accounting systems. This process 
is well underway and sched uled  for co mpletion by September 1999. W e believe we ha ve th e Y2K situation 
under control. 

M AINTENANCE DEPARTM ENT CONTROLS 

To as sist the School System in testing the effectiveness of the internal co ntrol procedures implemented in M ay 
1997, we selec ted 51 ma intenance invoices to review. One of the key co ntrol procedures implemented in the : 
revised policies requires the preparation by the co ntractor and sign-off by School System personnel of a "Job 
Verification Form" upon lea ving th e site of th e work perform ed . Th ere were approximately 200 Job 
Verification Forms included  in th e maintenance invoices reviewed. The followi ng summarizes th e results of our 
tests of th e invoices: 

Two (2) of the 51 invoices reviewed did not have the daily hours worked totaled on the Job Verification 
Form . 

~ Six (6)of the51 invoices were paid despite no signature in an d out for luneh. Polieyreq uiresco ntraclors 
to sign in an d out. Failure to do so is to result in a one hour reduction in pay, Th e resulting overpayment 
to one contractor was $528 for failure to sign in and out. However, all full da ys worked were reduced for a 
un e-halfhour lunch break exce pt in one instance  resulting in an  overp aym ent of $20. This co ntract had not 
been renewed for th e 1998 ),ear. In discussion wi th M aintenance Departm ent pe rsonnel, it appears that 
there is inconsistency in the implementation of the lunch break policy among pe rsonnel respo nsible for 
processing co ntractor invoice s. 
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~ Two (2) of the approximately 200 Job Verification Forms did not have all of the unused portions of the 
form lined out as required. 

~ One (1) of the 51 invoices did not have the required certification stamp as required . 

Of the 51 maintenance invoices reviewed, we noted one (1) invoice where parts and ma terials in excess of 
$50 were invoiced without adeq uate supporting documentation. Total unsuppo rted parts and materials 
invoiced was $339 for one contractor whose co ntract was not renewed  for 1998. 

Four (4) of the 51 invoices did not ha ve both the school copy and contractor co py for the Job Verification 
Forms th at are to be compared  as part of th e review of a payment req uest. Invoices related to th ese forms 
totaled  $11,645. 

During testing of bid quotations for seven (7) invoices paid, we noted that all of those invoices were paid 
without ha ving undergone the quotation procedures as  req uired . Checks totaling $13,116 were issued  to 
pay for th e goods/service s provided . 

W e reviewed  how th e ma intenance  department verifies the reasonableness of ma terials and supplies co sts 
charged  to the School System by the co ntractors. Departm ent personnel ca ll other suppliers for prices on 
supply costs that appear un usual to determ ine whether co sts being cha rged  are within industry standards. 

However, no documentation is prepared indica ting the results of such inquiries. 

Based  upo n our review, we observed  some requirements of th e policy an d procedures manual that may need 
fortber clarification to improve compliance and consistency among maintenan ce  contract invoice processing. 

Specifically noted un der the current review were th ose procedures related  to a normal work da y an d th e 
req uirement for documenting lunch breaks. Additionally, since  there ha ve been no revisions to th e manual 
during the year, ma tters needing clarifica tion that were noted  in th e prior year are still in need of attention. 

Such matters include the following: 

~ The definition of skilled labor for the purpose of determining whether the four (4) hour minimum guarantee 
applies. 

Clarification as to whether the four (4) hour minimum gu aran tee applicable to skilled labo rers also applies 
to their helpers. 

~ Clarification as  to whether the delivery of limestone an d sand requires the co mpletion of a Job Verifica tion 
Form . 

~ Clarification as to whether eq uipment rotes include th e labor of th e eq uipment operators 

~ Doc umentation req uirements ad ded  for cost analysis pe rformed  by ma intenance  pe rsonnel 

Th e M aintenan ce Department personn el should co ntinue to review the Job Verification Forms an d vendor 
invoices. Additiona lly, th e School System administration should attempt to clarify areas identified  as  
problematic in order to red uce  the instances of nnn -compliance  wi th School System po licies by personnel 
entrusted to implement th ose po licies and procedures. 
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The Jefferson Parish School System M aintenance operations continues to exert maximum  effort in the review 
and analysis of all work performed by service contractors to insure that the public trust is protected. W e 
believe we have made major strides in our endeavors an d will continue to try to achieve zero exceptions of 
policy an d procedures. In May of 1999, the Jefferson Parish School Board Coo struetion Committee (as 
approved at the Committee meeting of October 7, 1998) will review the po licy and procedures of service 
co ntracts an d wi ll seek new propo sal on all service contracts. Curren tly, the se rvice  co ntracts have been in 
force  for one year an d on October 7, 1998, were extended  for one year wi th a new propo sal sched uled  sometime 
soon after th e M ay 1999 co mmittee meeting. Service  oo ntraets are evaluated month ly an d problems are dealt 
with immed iately. W e be lieve, notwithstanding the findings of the 1997/98 external audit, that th e process is 
eredible, verifiable and protects th e public trust. 

SCHOOL LUNCH M EAL PRICES 

Observation 

During our testing of mea l price s, we determined  that th e price  charged  for lunches for adults an d students is 
$2.50 an d the average co st for lunch including co mmodities is $2.58. Guidelines, established  by th e 
Department of Education, requires that th e price charged  for full price s lunches/breakfast should be suffi cient 
to cover th e cost for the mea l. 

As part of our analysis of student lunch/breakfast pricing an d co st, we performed an  an alysis of th e average 
co st of mea ls for th e previous th ree yea rs. Our analysis indicates th at th e cost of mea ls has increased for ea ch 
of th e previous th ree yea rs as  follows: 

FYE94 to FYE95 showed  an increase of 1.0% 
FYE95 to FYE96 showed an  increase of 1.9% 
FYE96 to FYE97 showed an  increase of 5.3%  

W e recommend that th e School Board monitor mea l prices cha rged  for lun ch to students and adults and 
ma intain a level suffi cient to  co ver th e co st of th e mea l. Th e retained earnings balance  in th e Child Nutrition 
Fund approxima tes th e loss realized during FY98 indicating that additional subsidies from th e General Fund 
ma y be req uired  over th e next two years. 

The Jefferson Parish School Boa rd, as part of th e ad option of th e fiscal year 1998/99 Child Nutrition Budget
, 

raised the price of children meals (breakfast/lun ch) by $0.25 an d the price of adult breakfast an d lunch by 
$0.50. As a routine matter, the Jefferson Parish Schoo l System reviews th e mea l sales prices vs. co st of 
production annually an d makes appropriate changes necessary to co mply with th e law . 

The Jefferson Parish Schoo l System as  a routine part of the General Fund an d the Child Nutrition Fund annual 
budget adoption process reviews th e co st of meal production. In fact , th e Director of Child Nutrition, wi thin 
th e las t fiscal yea r, reported to th e School Boa rd that due to changing federal m ea l guidelines, a m ovem ent to 
tow-fat, low-sodium mea ls, the co st of mea ls would be increasing and that th e increase would be grea ter than in 
previous yea rs. 
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SABBATICAL LEAVE POLICY 

W e tested tbe  procedures for applying for sabbatical leave as established in the JPPSS Personnel Policy 

Manual (as revised 1994) to ensure that policies related to sabbatical leave were followed and that leaves were 
properly monitored  and approved. W e randomly selected 10 employees who recently completed sa bbatica l an d 
noted the following: 

~ In 3 instances, the applications for leave for purposes Of rest and recuperation were not mailed 30 days 
preceding the effective da te of the leave. 

~ In all 10 instances, th e employee was  not interviewed  following completion of leave 

~ In 3 instances, the applicant did not receive written notification of their aceeptance or rejection of 
sabbatica l leave within 30 days after filing the applica tion. 

~ In 4 instances, th e written notifica tion ofaec eptance of sabbatical lea ve was not on file 

The School Board should follow the established  guidelines for sabbatica l lea ve 

Th e Jefferson Parish School System is in the process of upda ting th e entire personnel manual of which 
sabbatica l lea ve is a part. The change in th e sabbatica l leave po licy wi ll recognize the fact that not all 
sabbatical lea ves can be pre-plarmed due to sudden illness or some other dire circumstance necessitating 
sabbatica l lea ve. W e believe that our current practices, in so far as routine sabbatica ls are conce rn ed, m irror 
our policy. 

STADIUM  ACCOUNTS - PRE-SIGNED CHECKS 

Observation 

W e noted that th ere were numerous pre-sigu ed  chec ks in th e Stadium Aec ount.chce kbook.. This defeats the 
purpose of th e dual signing procedure implemented for signing Stadium  Account chee ks. The Stadium Account 
is an agency fund of the School System . 

Recomm endation 

W e strongly recommend that the individuals responsible for signing the chec ks do not pre-sign an), chec ks. 
Also, th e individuals signing checks should review th e reason for issuing th e chec k before signing th e chec k. 
Th is wi ll help prevent an y chee ks be ing issued  for inco rrec t an d inappropriate items. 

This practice  has never been sanctioned  wi thin the Sehoo l System. The administrator and secretary respons ible 
for th e process have been instructed to cease an d desist imm ediately an d th ey ha ve. This wi ll co ntinue to be  an  
area of internal audit interest in th e future. 
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GASB TECHNICAL BULLETIN NO. 98-1 

In October 1998 the Governmental Acco unting Standard Board (GASB) issued GASB Technical Bulletin 
No. 98-1, "Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues." This technical bulletin was issued  to address th e type of 
disclosures that should be presented in the financial statemen ts about compliance with year 2000 issues for a 
government's internal co mputer systems and other electronic equipment. Am ong other things, governments wi ll 
be req uired  to disclose any significant amount of resources co mmitted to make co mputer systems an d other 
electronic eq uipment year 2000-complian t, and a general description of the yea r 2000 issue as it relates to their 
organization. This disclosure wi ll include a description of the stages of work in process or co mpleted as of the 
end of the government's reporting period, an d th e ad ditional stages of work necessary. 

The provisions of th is Technica l Bulletin are effective for financial statements on which th e auditor's report is 
dated  after October 31, 1998, an d th e School System wi ll th erefore be  req uired  to ad opt this technica l bulletin 
in fisca l year 1999. 

M an agement should evaluate the impact of GASB Technical Bulletin No. 98-1 on th e School System's 
financial statements. 

M an agement's Response 

M anagement wi ll co nsult with the auditors in th e co ming months to as sess th e impact of GASB Tec hnica l 
Bulletin No. 98-1 on our financial presentation. 

GASB STATEM ENT NO. 32 

Observation 

GASB has also issued  Statement No. 32, "Accounting an d Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code 
Sec tion 457 Deferred  Compensa tion Plans," in October 1997, GASBS No. 32 was  issued  in response to a 
change in Internal Revenue Cod e Sec tion 457 on August 20, 1996. This Cod e Sec tion now req uires that all 
assets an d in come of th e Deferred  Compensation Plans

. 
established under Cod e Sec tion 457 must be  held in 

trust for th e exclusive benefit of the participan ts an d th eir beneficiaries. Existing plans are req uired  to co mply 
wi th this req uirement by Jan uary 1, 1999. 

M anagemen l should evaluate th e impact of GASBS No. 32 on th e School System's Deferred Compe nsation 
Plan . Th e plan  wi ll have to be  amended  to co mply wi th the change in the Cod e. W hen the plan  is am ended  so 
that the as sets an d inco me ar e held in trust for th e exclusive benefit of th e participan ts an d their be neficiaries, 
th e plan  wi ll no longer be  included  in the School System 's financial statements as an  Agency Fun d. 

Th e Deferred  Compensation Plan  will be  am ended  to co nform wi th recent am endments to th e Internal Revenue 
Cod e by January 1, 1999. 
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APPENDIX 

MANAGEMENT S RESPONSIBILITY FOR, AND THE OBJECTIVES AND LIMITA~ ONS OF 
INTERNAL CO NTROL 

The following comments concerning managcment's responsibility for internal control and the objectives and 
inherent limitations of internal control are adapted from the Statements on Auditing Standards of th e American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

M ana~ement's Resoonsibilitv 

M anagement is responsible for establishing and mainta ining internal co ntrol. In fulfilling this respo nsibility, 

estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of 
controls. 

Objectives 

The objectives of internal control are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
as sets are safeguarded  against loss from unauthorized use or dispo sition, and that transactions are executed in 
accordance wi th management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Lim itations 

Because ofirhhcrent lmi itations in any internal co ntrol, misstatem ents due to error or fraud may occur an d not 

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of internal control to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of co mplian ce 
wi th th e policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



D e|oitte &  T ouche LLP R ebowe &  C ompany APC H anford M . H arrison, CPA 

701 Poydras Street 
Suite 3700 
New O rleans, Louisiana 70139 

(504) 581-2727 

October 16, 1998 

3501 N. Causeway Boulevard 
Sta te 810 - , " - ,, 
M etairie, Louisian a 70002 

(504) 837-0123 

Jefferson Parish School Board 
4600 River Road 
M arrero, Louisiana 70072 

Dear M embers of the Board 

1027 W hitney Avenue 
G retna, Louisiana 70056 
(504) 368-2501 

The approach of the year 2000 presents significant issues for many financial, information, and 
operational systems. M any systems  in use today may not be able to interpret dates after December 31, 
1999 appropriately, because such systems allow only two digits to indicate the year in a da te. As a 
result, such systems  are unable to  distinguish Jan uary 1, 2000, from January  1, 1900, which co uld have 
adverse consequences on the operations of the entity an d the integrity of information processing, causing 
safety, operational, an d financial issues. 

,Our audit of Jefferson Parish Public School System's (School System's) financial statements for the 
year ended June 30, 1998, does not provide an y assurances that the School System 's systems  or an y 
other systems , such as th ose of the School System's vendors, service providers, customers, or other th ird 
parties, including th e Departm ent of Education, are year 2000 complian t, nor does our audit provide an y 
assurances regarding the year 2000. In ad dition, we were not engaged to perform, nor did we perform, 
any procedures to test whether the Schoo l System 's systems  or an y oth er systems  are yea r 2000 
co mplian t or whether the plans and activities of the School System are sufficient to address and co rrect 
system or an y oth er problems  that m ight arise because of th e year 2000. Acco rdingly, we do not express 
an y opinion or provide an y other as surance s regarding the yea r 2000. 

However, during audit.field work in th e period ended  October 16, 1998, we made limited inquiries about 
the Schoo l System 's activities to address th e yea r 2000 issue. W e have not performed  an y procedures to 
test th e accuracy or co mpleteness of th e respons es to our inquiries, but we have noted that the School 
System has  contracted an external compan y, Lockheed M artin, to provide yea r 2000 co nversion 
service s. Additionally, we have noted that th e School System's management doe s ha ve a yea r 2000 
co mpliance  co mmittee that meets regu larly to discuss th e progress of th e yea r 2000 conversion process. 
Because year 2000 activities are currently in process, we ma y ha ve had additional observations  had we 
made inquiries after th e da te of this letter. Accordingly, we encourage management an d the Boa rd to 
co ntinue th eir oversight of Schoo l System 's yea r 2000 activities. 

Th is report is intended  solely for the information of th e Schoo l Board, management, th e State of 
Lo uisian a Legislative Auditor, and offi cials of applicable fed eral an d state ag encies. This restriction is 
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

Yours truly, 


